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City of

Burlington

December 30, 2005

To the Honorable Mayor, Members of the City Council, and Citizens of the CITY
OF BURLINGTON, JOWA.

State law requires that all general purpose local governments publish within nine
months of the close of each fiscal year a complete set of financial statements
presented in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America (GAAP) and audited in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America by a firm of licensed
certified public accountants or by the State Auditor’s Office. Pursuant to that
requirement, we hereby issue the comprehensive annual financial report of the
City of Burlington, Iowa, for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005.

This report consists of management’s representations concerning the finances of
the City of Burlington. Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for
the completeness and reliability of all of the information presented in this report.
To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations, management of
the City of Burlington has established a comprehensive internal control framework
that is designed both to protect the government’s assets from loss, theft, or misuse
and to compile sufficient reliable information for the preparation of the City of
Burlington’s financial statements in conformity with GAAP. Because the cost of
internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the City of Burlington’s
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide
reasonable rather than absolute assurance that the financial statements will be free
from material misstatement. As management, we assert that, to the best of our
knowledge and belief, this financial report is complete and reliable in all material
respects.

The City of Burlington’s financial statements have been audited by Eide Bailly,
LLP, a firm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent
audit was to provide reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City
of Burlington for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005, are free of material
misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis,
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evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements;
assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit that there was a reasonable
basis for rendering an unqualified opinion that the City of Burlington’s financial
statements for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005 are fairly presented in
conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is presented as the first
component of the financial section of this report.

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Burlington was
part of a broader, federally mandated “Single Audit” designed to meet the special
needs of federal grantor agencies. The standards governing Single Audit
engagements require the independent auditor to report not only on the fair
presentation: of the financial statements, but also- on the audited government’s
controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on
internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal
awards. These reports are contained in the compliance section of this
comprehensive annual financial report.

GAAP require that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and
analysis to accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s
Discussion and Analysis (MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to
complement MD&A and should be read in conjunction with it. The City of
Burlington’s MD&A can be found 1mmed1ately following the report of the
mdependent auditors.

Profile of the Government

The City of Burlington, incorporated in 1836 is located on the Mississippi River in
the southeastern corner of the state. Burlington serves as the county seat of Des
Moines County and as a regional trade center. The City of Burlington currently
occupies a land area of 14 square miles and serves a population of 26,839. The
City of Burlington is empowered to levy a property tax on real property located
within its boundaries. It alse is empowered by state statute to extend its corporate
limits by annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the
City Council. ‘

The City of Burlington has operated under the council-manager - form of
government since 1982. Policy-making and legislative authority are vested in a
governing council congisting of five members elected at large. The mayor is
~selected by the City Council from their members. The governing council is



responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the budget,
appointing committees, and hiring both the government’s manager, city clerk, and
attorney. The government’s manager is responsible for carrying cut the policies
and ordinances of the governing council, for overseeing the day-to-day operations
of the government, and for appointing the heads of the various departments. The
council is elected on a non-partisan basis. Council members serve four-year
staggered terms, with council members elected every two years.

The City of Burlington provides a full range of services, including police and fire
protection; the construction and mainienance of highways, streets, and other
infrastructure, wastewater treatment, refuse collection, and recreational activities
and cultural events. The City of Burlington is financially accountable for the
legally separate Burlington Municipal Waterworks and the legally separate
Southeast Jowa Regional Airport Authority (SEIRAA) both of which are reported
separately within the City of Burlington’s financial statements. The Friends of the
Burlington Public Library Foundation is reported as a component unit since they
raise funds for the exclusive use of the Burlington Public Library.

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Burlington’s financial
planning and control. All agencies of the City of Burlington are required to
submit requests for appropriation to the Deputy City Manager before the end of
November of each year. The City Manager uses these requests as the starting
point for developing a proposed budget. The City Manager then presents this
proposed budget to the council for review prior to the end of January. The council
is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final
budget by no later than March 15. The appropriated budget is prepared by fund,
function (e.g., Public Safety), and department (e.g., police). Department heads
may make transfers of appropriations within a department with the manager’s
approval. Transfers of appropriations between departments, however, require the
special approval of the governing council.

Factors Affecting Financial Condition
The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood

when it is considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment
within which the City of Burlington operates.




Local Economy. Prospects for the local economy continued to improve. Case
New Holland (CNH) settled a prolonged strike and has subsequently increased
employment. Great River Medical Center is undertaking an expansion project
adding additional services and attracting néw doctors to the area. The lowa Army
Ammunition Plant was designated to become a Center of Excellence for supplying
the U. 5. Army and prospects for increased employment are excellent. The
General Electric Switchgear Plant has experienced an increase in orders resulting
in an increase of 100 in employment levels. The Winegard Company undertook
construction of Fun City as an expansion of the existing Pzazz! Best Western.
When completed this fall Fun City will be a family entertainment complex
consisting of an indoor and outdoor aquatic center, video arcade, bowling alley,
indoor go-cart track and restaurants. Employment is projected at approximately
200 and will result in a tourism draw to the community. Federal Mogul Ignition
Products completed a modérization project which increased employment by 25
with a potential for more in the future. Construction of a 143 unit apartment
complex was recently begun on the City’s west side. Finally, the City received a
$4,250,000 Vision Iowa Grant to assist in construction of a new public library,
remodeling of Memorial Auditorium, conversion of the existing library into a
museum, and remodeling of Community Field, home of the Burlington Bees, a
class A affiliate of the Kansas City Royals. All of these projects will help enhance
the quality of life in the community.

Cash Management Policies and Practices. Cash temporarily idle during the
year is primarily invested in certificates of deposit of Iocal financial institutions.
This practice is in compliance with the City’s investment policy as adopted by the
City Council. Bids are informally solicited from those institutions and the funds
invested at the best rate obtainable. Daily funds are deposited in money market
accounts. Total interest earned during the year amounted to $18,856 on an accrual
basis.

Risk Management. Effective February 1, 1988 the City began self-insuring its
property and liability coverages. The City purchases layers of reinsurance through
various insurance companies with the City assuming a self-insured retention, per
claim, of $50,000 for property losses and $250,000 for liability losses. In
addition, the City self-insures its workers compensation coverages under the same
basis with a self-insured retention of $100,000 per claim. In the aggregate, the
City’s losses for any one year cannot exceed $275,000. The City’s self-insurance
fund is treated as an internal service fund. Claims paid by the City are charged to
this fund, which recovers its expenditures from the appropriate fund incurring the
claim. - In addition, effective July 1, 1983 the City entered into an lowa Code
Chapter 28E Agreement with Des Moines County to create a pooling arrangement



to provide health and dental care benefits for it’s employees. Premiums, based
upon an annual actuarial review, are paid into a trust account out of which claims
are paid. Effective July 1, 2003 the pool began to purchase coverage through
Wellmark Blue Cross/Blue Shield with a $2,000/$4,00C deductible. The plan self-
insures down to the lower deductible selected by the member. Additionally,
prescription drug and dental coverages are still self-insured.

Pension Benefits. The City of Burlington provides pension benefits for its
employees, through either the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of
Iowa (MFPRSI) or The Iowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS).
These benefits are provided through statewide plans managed by the appropriate
State Pension Board. The City of Burlington has no obligation in connection with
employee benefits offered through this plan beyond its annual contractual
payment to the State Pension Board.

Additional information on the City of Burlington’s pension arrangements can be
found in notes to the financial statements.

Awards and Acknowledgments

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of
Achievement for Excellence in Financial Reporting to the City of Burlington for
its comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2004. In order to be awarded a Certificate of Achievement, the government
published an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR. This report satisfied
both GAAP and applicable legal requirements.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. We believe
that our current CAFR continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement
Program’s requirements and we are submitting it to the GFOA to determine its
eligibility for another certificate,

The government received the GFOA’s Distingnished Budget Presentation Award
for its annual budget document dated July 1, 2005. In order to qualify for the
Distinguished Budget presentation Award, the government’s budget document
was judged to be proficient in several categories, including as a policy document,
a financial plan, an operations guide, and a communications device.

The preparation of this report would not have been possible without the efficient
and dedicated services of the entire staff of the finance department. We would
like to express our appreciation to all members of the department who assisted and




contributed to the preparation of this report. Credit also must also be given to the
mayor and the governing council for their unfailing support for maintaining the
highest standards of professionalism in the management of the City of
Burlington’s finances,

Bruce R. Slagle i szg_a J. Worden, CPA

City Manager , Deputy City Manager
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CITY OF BURLINGTON

MISSION STATEMENT

community to meet future challenges and opportunities.

VISION STATEMENT

11

The mission of the City of Burlington is to provide consistent guality services to support §
a safe and healthy community. This commitment to excellence is based on the belief that §§
well informed and invelved citizens, in partnership with trained service oriented city i
employees will maintain and implement cost effective services which enable the

The City of Budington believes in a strong partnership between customer-service @
oriented employees and well-informed and involved citizens whose pride and belief in the

future encourages investment and progress.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Burlington, lowa

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate
remaining fund information of the City of Burlington, lowa, (the City) as of and for the year ended June 30,
2005, which collectively comprise the City's basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents.
These financial statements are the responsibility of the management of the City of Burlington. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We did not audit
the financial statements of the Burlington Municipal Waterworks, the Southeast lowa Regional Airport
Authority, and the Friends of the Burlington Public Library. Those financial statements were audited by
other auditors whose reports thereon have been furnished to us, and our opinion, insofar as it relates to
the amounts included for the Burlington Municipal Waterworks, the Southeast lowa Regional Airport
Authority, and the Friends of the Burlington Public Library, is based on the reports of the other auditors.

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and
perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of
material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts
and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and the significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit and the reports of other auditors provide a reasonable
basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, based on our audit and the reports of other auditors, the financial statements referred to
above present fairly, in all material respects, the respeciive financial position of the governmental
activities, the business-type activities, the aggregate discretely presented component units, each major
fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the City of Burlington, lowa, as of June 30, 2005,
and the respective changes in financial position and cash flows, where applicable, thereof for the year
then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated November 3,
2005, on our consideration of the City’s internal control over financial reporting and on our iests of its
compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other
matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial
reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal
control over financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government Auditing Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of
our audit. )

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.

www.eidebailly.com
3999 Pennsylvania Ave., Suite 100 I Dubuque, lowa 52002-2639 I Phone 563.556.1790.1 Fax 563.557 7842 N EQE




The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information listed in the table of
confents are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information
required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We have applied
certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods
of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit
the information and express no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively
comprise the basic financial statements of the City of Burlington, lowa. The introductory section,
combining nonmajor fund financial statements, and statistical tables are presented for purposes of
additional analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. The accompanying
Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards is presented for purposes of additional analysis as required
by the U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes, Local Governments, and
Non-Profit Organizations, and is also not a required part of the basic financial statements of the City of
Burlington. The combining nonmajor fund financial statements and the Schedule of Expenditures of
Federal Awards have been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial
statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic financial
statements taken as a whole. The introductory section and statistical tables have not been subjected to
the auditing procedures applied in the audlt of the basic financial statements, and accordingly, we
express no opinion on them.

é‘—,‘éﬁu/@AzJ&

Dubuque, lowa
November 3, 2005
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our discussion and analysis of the City’s financial performance for the fiscal year ended June
30, 2005 1s intended to give the readers an overview of and additional insight into the financial
activities of the City over the past year. This will be done most effectively by reading this
discussion in conjunction with the letter of transmittal and the financial statements.

Financial Highlights

e The assets of the City of Burlington exceeded its liabilities at the close of the most recent
fiscal year by $35,694,354 (net assets), an increase of $1,856,587 from the previous year.

o At the close of the current fiscal year, the City of Burlington’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $235,207, a decrease of $1,044,959 in comparison with
the prior year. The Debt Service Fund decreased by $13,711. The General Fund decreased
by $139,158. The Road Use Tax Fund decreased by $10,970, Local Option Sales Tax Fund
by $265,125, Tax Increment increased by $104,800, Capital Projects decreased by
$663,236, and all other governmental funds by $57,560.

o At the end of the current fiscal year, unreserved fund balances for the General Fund was
$894,764 or 6.5 percent of total General Fund expenditures.

e The City of Burlington’s total debt increased by $484,574 (1.43%) during the current fiscal
year,

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This discussion and analysis 1s intended to serve as an introduction to the City of Burlington’s
basic financial statements. The statements comprise three components: 1)the government-
wide financial statements, 2)the fund financial statements, and 3)the notes to the financial
statements.

Government-wide Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements are designed to be corporate-like in that the
governmental and business-type activities are consolidated into statements intended to present
the operations of the City as a whole.

The Statement of Net Assets presents the City’s financial position, in its entirety, as of June 30.
All of the City’s assets (except infrastructure acquired prior to fiscal year 2001) and liabilities
are presented with the difference between the two reported as net assets. In order to
consolidate and present the City’s activities as a whole, it is necessary to convert the
governmental fund statements from a measurement focus of financial resources to a
measurement focus of economic resources. Essentially, this adds long-term assets and
liabilities to the fund financial statements.

' 15




On the right side of the statement, the Burlington Municipal Waterworks and the Southeast
Iowa Regional Airport Authority are presented. The City appoints a majority of their board
members and has a substantial financial responsibility for these organizations. Therefore, the
City’s financial statements would not be complete without reporting their activities. The focus
of the statements, however, is clearly on the primary government. There are separately issued
financial statements for these component units. Additionally, the Friends of the Burlington
Public Library Foundation is reported since they raise funds exclusively for the benefit of the
Burlington Public Library.

The Statement of Activities presents information showing how the City’s net assets changed
during the fiscal year. It focuscs on the gross and net cost of various programs. This is
intended to simplify the user’s analysis of the cost of providing various government services
and their funding sources.

The Governmental Activities reflects the City’s basic services such as police, fire, parks,
library, auditorium, public works, and general administration. Primary funding sources include
sales and road use taxes, property taxes, service charges, and intergovernmental grants and
funds. The Business-type Activities are intended to be self-funding through user fees and
charges.

Fund Financial Statements

Traditional users of the City’s financial statements will find the fund financial statements more
familiar. The most noticeable change is the shift away from fund types and towards major
funds. The City’s funds are divided into two major categories: governmental funds and
proprietary funds.

Governmental Funds. Governmental funds are used to account for essentially the same
functions reported as governmental activities (the government-wide level). However, unlike
the government-wide level, governmental funds focus on short-term inflows and outflows of
financial resources rather than flow of economic (all) resources. This information is useful in
evaluating short-term financing requirements and is typically the basis (plus encumbrances) for
which the City’s annual budget is developed. A more detailed list of differences between the
governmental funds and the governmental activities can be found in the reconciliations
provided in the fund financial statements - ‘ »

The City has six major funds: the General fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Road Use Tax
Fund, the Local Option Sales Tax Fund, the Tax Increment Financing Fund, and the Capital
Projects Fund. The City also has eleven non-major governmental funds. These funds are
combined and reported in a single column in the governmental fund financial statements, but
are reported individually elsewhere in the report,

The City uses funds to prepare its annual_budget, but is not the legal level of control. The State
of Iowa instead requires City’s to budget at a higher “function” level that crosses funds and
fund types. The eight levels are Public Safety, Culture and Recreation, Community and

16
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Economic Development, Health and Social Services, Public Works, General Government, Debt
Service, and Capital Projects. Legal compliance is demonstrated in the Budget to Actual
Schedule in the required supplementary information immediately following the notes to the
financial statements.

The basic governmental fund financial statements can be found on pages 30 - 33 of this report.

Proprietary Funds. The City maintains two different types of proprietary funds. They are the
enterprise funds and the internal service funds. These funds are called proprietary, because the
funds are run in a business-like manner. Enterprise funds primarily serve external customers
and are self-funding through user charges. The enterprise funds present the same functions and
use the same measurement focus as the business-type activities on the government-wide
statements, but in more detail.

The City maintains five enterprise funds: the Sewer Fund, the Solid Waste Fund, the Recplex
Fund, the Parking Fund, and the Flint Hills Golf Course Fund. They are all presented as major
funds.

The internal service funds primarily serve City functions or other governmental entities. The
internal service funds are consolidated into the governmental activities at the government-wide

level.

The City maintains five internal services funds: the Property Maintenance Fund, the Vehicle
Maintenance Fund, the Safety Coordination Fund, the Self Insurance Fund, and the
Miscellaneous Service Fund. They are combined into a single, aggregated column in the
proprietary fund financial statements, but are reported individually elsewhere in the report.

Notes to the Financial Statements

A
The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the data
provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the financial
statements are found on pages 40 - 91 of this report. :

Other Information. The combining statements referred to earlier in connection with
nonmajor governmental funds and internal service funds are presented immediately following
the required supplementary information. Combining statements and schedules can be found on
pages 77 - 83 of this report.
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Government-wide Financial Analysis

As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a government’s
financial position. In the case of the City of Burlington, assets exceeded liabilities by
$35,694,354 at the close of the most recent fiscal year.

By far the largest portion of the City. of Burlington’s net assets reflects its investment in capital
assets (e.g., land, buildings, machmery, equipment and infrastructure), less any related debt
used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding. The City of Burlington uses these capital
assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for future
spending. Although the City of Burlington’s investment in its capital assets is reported net of
related debt, it should be noted that the resources needed to repay this debt must be provided
from other sources, since the capital assets themselves cannot be used to liquidate these
liabilities.

City of Burlington Net Assets (000°s)

Governmental Activities Business Type Activities Total Total
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005
Current and Other Assets $ 11,420 § 11,383 § 2211 % 212 § 13631 $§ 11,595
Capital Assets $ 295661 § 34628 § 35989 § 36425 $ 65550 $ 71,053
Total Assets $ 40,981 $§ 46,011 38,200 & 36637 $ 791481 $ 82,648
Long Term Liabilities outstanding $ 22245 § 25435 $ 9283 § 9376 $ 31,534 $§ 34811
Other Liabilities $ 12,327 $ 11,369 § 1,338 § 774 § 13865 $ 12072
Total Liabilities $ 34,572 § 36804 $ 10,627 & 10,150 $ 451939 $§ 46,383
Net Assets:
Invested in Capital Assets $ 6252 § 10254 $§ 25770 § 26957 $ 32,022 § 37,211
Net of Related Debt : ' _
Restricted $ 700 $ 316 § 542 § 542 § 1,242 § 858
Unrestricted $ (543) $ - (1,364) § 12506 § (1,011) § 716 5§  (2,304)
Total Net Assets $ 6,409 $ 9,206 5 27,571 $§ 26488 $ 33,980 $ 35,765

A portion of the City of Burlington’s net assets (2%) represents resources that are subjeet to
external restrictions on how they may be used. .

At the end of the current year the City’s unrestricted net assets were {$2,543,224).
There was a decrease of $3,259,682 in the City’s unrestricted assets.

The City’s net assets increased by $1, 856 587 during the current fiscal year. |
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Governmental activities.

. Governmental activities increased the City of Burlington’s net
| assets by $2,924,853, thereby accounting for the total growth in the net assets of the City of

Butlington. Key elements of this increase are as follows:

City of Burlington’s Changes in Net Assets

Governmental Activities

Revenues:
Program Revenues
Charges for Services
Operating Grants & Contributions
Capital Grants and Contributions
General Revenues:
Property Taxes
Other Taxes

Grants & Contributions not Restricted

to Specific Programs
Other
Total Revenues

Expenses:

General Government
Public Safety

Public Works

Culture and Recreation
Community & Economic Dev
Health & Social Services
Capital Projects

Interest on Long Term Debt
Sewer

Solid Waste

RecPlex

Parking

Flint Hills Golf Course
Total Expenses

Increase in Net Assets Before
Transfers

Transfers

Increase (decrease} in Net Assets
Net Assets Beginnhing

Net Assets Ending

2004

2477577
2,904,168
4,172,517

& EH B

8,582,113
4,305,038

£

$ 220926
$ 3,053,755
$ 25,735,004

$ 1,221,354
$ 8,242,972
% 5,471,958
$ 3,402,667
$ 716,776
$ 1,481
$ 882424
$ 1,071,082
$
%
$
$
$
$

21,010,694

% 4,724,400
$ 469,421
$ 5,193,821
$ 1,088,281
$ 6,282,102

2005

2,691,780
2,476,108
5,915,051

£ &8 &

9,256,709
4,028,019

& €A

$ 10,451
$ 2,018,253
$ 26,396,379

$ 1,468,785
$ 8,622,916
$ 5,504,824
$ 3,560,012
$ 304,048
$ 2,052
$ 3,433,235
$ 1,059,329
$
$
$
$
$
$

23,955,201

$ 2,441,178
§ 483,875
$ 2,924,853
$ 6,282,102
$ 9,208,935
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Business Type Activities

2004

$ 4,379,764

3 318481

2
$ -

©

622,114
8,186,689

3 £A

£ £ N
1

$

$ 3,887,074
$ 1,088,003
$ 508,042
$ 134,003
$ 534,187
$ 6,152,389

$ 2,034,300
$ (469,421)
$ 1,564,879
$ 26,008,849
$ 27,571,728

2005
$ 4,550,851
$ 727233
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ 592076
$ 5,870,160
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ -
$ . -
$ 4072268
$ 1,188,290
$ 520,097
$ 137,152
$ 536,044
$ 6,454,751
$ (584,501)
$ (483,675)

$ (1,068,266)

< £ £8 &5 &9

=® £ A

& H N €9

£ €% €9 £ 8 o

$

$

Total

2004

6,857,341
2,904,168
7,357,328

8,502,113
4,305,038

229,926
3,675,869
33,921,783

1,221,354
8,242,972
5,471,858
3,402,667

1,071,062
3,887,074
1,088,003
508,042
134,993
534,187
27,163,083

6,758,700

6,758,700

Total

2005

7,242,641

2476,106
6,642,284

H £7 49

9,256,709
4,028,019

& H

B 10,451
$ 2,610,329
$ 32,268,539

1,468,785
B,622,916
5,504,824
3,560,012
304,048
2,052
3,433,235
1,059,329
4,072,268
1,188,290
520,097
137,152
535,944
30,409,952

9 N R D ER ER R B R 6 A R R

5 1,856,587

$ 1.856,587

$27,555,615 § 27,095,130 § 33,837,767
$26,487,300 § 33,853,830 § 35,604,354




Total revenues for governmental purposes increased by $661,285. The largest increase was in
the area of capital grants and contributions which increased by $1,742,534. This increase is
primarily attributable to the Community Field and Library projects funded with private
contribution and Vision Iowa grant proceeds. Property taxes increased by $664,596. Other
revenues decreased by $1,035,502 while operating grants and contributions decreased by
$428,062. Other taxes decreased by $277,019, primarily due to a decrease in Local Option
Sales Tax revenues. Total expenses increased by $2,944,447. The largest area of increasing
was in Capital Projects which increased by $2,550,811. Public Safety expenditures increased
by $379,944, largely as the result of increasing pension contributions

Expenses and Program Revenues — Governmental Activities (000’s)

£$9,000,000
$5,000,000
$7,000,000
$6,000,000
$5000,000

54,000,000

<] Expenﬂitures
M Revenues

§3,000,000
52,000,000

$000,000

i

General Public Safety  Public Works  Culture and Interaston  Commercial&  Health & Capital

Govemnment Recreation Long-term Ecanomic Social Projects
Dabt Dev. Services

20



] p——y

)

[

ey

——

[

———

o
|

L

-

Revenues by Source — Governmental Activities

Other

8% Capital Grants
- 22%

Charges for Services
10%

Grants & Contributions-not
restricted to specific
programs
1%

Other Taxes
15%

N Property Taxes
Dperating Grants & 35%
Contributions :
9%

Business-type activities. = Business-type activities decreased the City of Burlington’s net
assets by $1,068,266. The Sewer, RecPlex, Flint Hills Golf Course, Parking, and Solid Waste
Funds all had a decrease of net assets for the year. The Sewer Fund net assets decreased by
$550,181 after depreciation of $1,172,501. The Solid Waste Fund realized a loss in net assets
of $156,819 after depreciation of $71,164. This loss can be attributed to a large worker
compensation settlement as. well as rising fuel costs. Staff reduction as of July 1 should help
rectify this problem in the ensuing year. The Rec Plex and Golf Course both continued to
sustain decreases in net assets after adjusting for depreciation. In both cases revenues continue
to lag behind expenditures. The Parking Fund realized a decrease of $73,982 after depreciation
of $64,037.
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Expenses and Program Revenues — Business-type Activities

Revenues by Source — Business-Type Activities

Capital Grants &
Caonfribution
37%

Charges for Services
55%

Cther
8%

Financial Analysis of the Government’s Funds

As noted earlier the City of Burlington uses fund accounting to ensure and demonstrate
compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the City of Burlington’s governmental funds is to
provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balance of spendable resources. Such
information is useful in assisting the City of Burlington’s financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government’s net
resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

As of the end of the current fiscal year the City of Burlington’s governmental funds reported
combined ending fund balances of $235,207 a decrease of $1,049,959. The Capital Projects
Fund decreased by $663,235 reflecting the expenditure of bond proceeds received in the prior
fiscal year. The Local Option Sales Tax Fund decreased by $265,125 as the result of reduced
local option sales tax payments which occurred toward the end of the year, too late to allow for
spending adjustments. As discussed later, the General Fund declined by $139,158.

- The unreserved fund balance was $213.682.
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' The General Fund is the chief operating fund of the city of Burlington. At the end of the
~ current fiscal year, unreserved fund balance of the General Fund was $894,764 while total fund
~ balance reached $906,405. As a measure of the General Fund’s liquidity, it may be useful to

compare both unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures.

-+ Unreserved fund balance represents 6.5 percent of total General Fund expenditures, while total

. fund balance also represents 6.6 percent of that same amount.

The fund balance of the City of Burlington’s General Fund decreased by $139,158 during the
current fiscal year. Key factors in this decrease were rising energy costs and increased
| overtime in the Police and Fire Departments resulting from understaffing during the year.

The Road Use Tax Fund has a balance of $202,418, a decrease of $10,970. The Local Option
I Sales Tax Fund balance of $326,369 represents funds allocated for projects, but not expended
as of June 30, 2005 funds received in the prior year and carried forward for property tax relief
in the ensuing fiscal year, and funds set aside for economic development purposes and not as of
| yet committed. :

v Proprietary funds. The City of Burlington’s proprietary funds provide the same type of
! information found in the government-wide financial statements, but in more detail.

| Total net assets for the City’s Enterprise Funds as of June 30, 2005 was $26,487,399 a decrease
" 0f $1,068,266 after recording depreciation of $1,486,485.

i | The Sewer, Solid Waste, RecPlex, Parking and Golf Course Funds all recorded operating losses
for the year. Adjusting for depreciation substantially reduces these losses.

i The Parking Fund continues to suffer from a loss of revenue as the result of Burlington
_ Medical Center’s move from the downtown. Efforts continue to be made to adjust for this loss,
. but after adjusting for depreciation, the Parking Fund still recorded an operating loss of $9,945.

The Sewer Fund recorded an operating loss of $512,448 as the result of depreciation of

i $1,172,501.

The Solid Waste Fund recorded an operating loss of $46,260 after recording depreciation
expense of $71,164.

The RecPlex Fund recorded an operating loss of $182,561, after recording depreciation of
$106,627. -

The Golf Course Fund recorded an operating loss of $103,162 after recording $72,156 of

depreciation. While play and revenues continue to increase, expenses increased by a similar
amount.
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Budget Analysis

The final amended budget for all funds was $6,436,560 or 17.5% greater than the original
budget. The final amended budget was $43,137,575. The major items in the amendment were
$1,800,000 for the City’s contribution to Fun City, $425,000 for the City’s contribution to the
Community Field improvements, $2,000,000 for EPA sewer project expenditures $975,000 for
contribution to a new hotel development, and $250,000 for economic development grant to
Federal Mogul. The balance was for a variety of items.

Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The City of Burlington’s investment in capital assets for its governmental and
business type activities as of June 30, 2005, amounts to $70,872,253 (net of accumulated
depreciation). This investment in capital assets includes land, buildings and system,
improvements, machinery and equipment, and park facilities and infrastructure. While the City
has converted to GASB 34 for reporting purposes, it has not, as of yet, recognized the value of
roads, highways, and bridges constructed prior to year ended June 30, 2001. The total increase
in the City’s investment in capital assets for the current fiscal year was 9 percent (a 17 percent
increase for governmental activities and a 1 percent increase for business-type activities).

Major capital asset events during the current fiscal year included the following:

s The capitalization of new infrastructure added during the year amounted to $1,708,120 for
governmental purposes and $8,886,204 for business-type activities. This would reflect the
value of street and sewer construction projects completed during the year. Buildings for
governmental purposes increased by $2,552,000 as the result of 1mprovements made to
Community Field.

o The Vaiue of work in progress amounted to $3,165,922'. This largely reflects the value of
the new library building under construction as of June 30 and miscellaneous street projects.
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City of Burlington’s Capital Assets (000°s)
(net of depreciation)

Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities Total
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005
Land 3 2,000 % 2,000 § 399 % 399 % 2399 $§ 2,329
Buildings and System $ 5474 % 8026 $ 12934 § 12324 $ 18,408 $ 20,350
Improvements Other Than Buildings $ 3,123 § 2854 % 1,821 § 1,815 § 5044 § 4,669
Fixtures and Equipment $ 2751 § 2,603 § 1,360 § 1,259 § 4,111 § 3,952
Infrastructure $ 14,659 § 15980 $§ 11897 % 20,357 § 26,556 § 36,337
Construction in Progress $ 1554 % 3,076 % 6,936 § a0 $ 8,490 § 3,166
Total $ 20561 % 34629 § 35447 % 36244 % 65,008 $ 70,873

Additional information on the City of Burlington’s capital assets can be found in note V on
pages 54 - 56 of this report.

Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the City of Burlington had total bonded
debt outstanding of $33,475,000. Of this amount, $30,520,000 comprises debt backed by the
full faith and credit of the government and $2,955,000 is revenue bonds repayable with
revenues from the City’s sewer utility. In addition the City owes Burlington Area
Development Corporation $186,000 for funds advanced toward construction of the RecPlex in
Flint Ridge Business Park. The Golf Course owes $15,543 on a lease payable for golf carts
and the City owes the developers of Pheasant Run subdivision $82,085 for funds advanced to
meet debt service needs when tax increment revenues were insufficient.

CITY OF BURLINGTON’S OUTSTANDING DEBT
General Obligation and Revenue Bonds (000°s)

Governmental Activities Business - Type Activities Total
2004 2005 2004 2005 2004 2005
General Obligation Bonds $ 22725 § 24333 § 6,860 % 6,187 § 29585 § 30,520
Sewer Revenue Bonds 5 3310 & 2955 § 3,310 § 2,955
Notes Payable $ 223 $ 268 % 223 § 268
|.ease Payable 3 30 9 16 % 30 % 16
Total $ 22948 § 24601 $ 10,200 $ 9,158 $ 33,148 § 33,759
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The City of Burlington’s total debt increased by $484,574 during the current fiscal year. The
City of Burlington maintains an “A2” rating from Moody’s for both general obligation and
sewer revenue bonds. '

State statues limit the amount of general obligation debt a governmental entity may issue to 5
percent of its total assessed valuation. The current debt limitation for the City of Burlington is
$47,439,779, which is well in excess of the City’s outstanding general obligation debt.

Additional information on the City of Burlington’s long-term debt can be found in note VIII on
pages 60 - 64 of this report.

Economic Factors and Next Year’s Budgets and Rates

The unemployment rate for the City of Burlington, as of June 30, 2005 was 5.6% a decrease
from June, 2004’s figure of 7.3%. Total labor force was 12,660 with 11,950 employed
compared to the prior year’s figures of 12,760 and 11,820. The June 30 unemployment figure
compares to a state-wide rate of only 4.6%.

For fiscal year 2005 total value of building permits issued was $21,179,000 an increase of
$2,440,000 or 13 percent from the prior fiscal year. :

For the fiscal 2005-2006 budget, the City’s property tax rate was increased by $.62 per $1,000
property valuations or 4.4% to a total of $14.85. This increase resulted from an increase in
police and fire pension costs.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide a general overview of the City of Burlington’s
finances for all those with an interest in the government’s finances. Questions concerning any
of the information provided in this report or requests for additional financial information
should be addressed to the Office of the Deputy City Manager, City of Burlington, 400
Washington, Burlington, IA 52601. _
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Clty of Burlington, lowa

Statemeant of Net Assets
June 30, 2005

Primary Government Component Units
Burlington Southeast lowa Friends of the
Governmental Business-Type Municlpal Regtanal Burlington
Activities Activities Total Waterworks  Airport Autharity Public Library
Assels
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents § 107667 § .0 % 107,667 % 1,008,505 $ 35,801 $ 1,757,513
vestments, at Market o 0 0 i} i 6,248,025
Receivables:
Interest i 0 0 44,622 i 34,400
Taxes 5,763,579 0 8,763,574 0 o 0
Accounts 422,334 119,388 541,722 370,330 41,758 0
Special assessmenis 194,932 0 194,932 4] 0 0
Intergovernmentat 747,313 1] 747,313 D 0 a
Promises to Give D 4] 0 1} 1} 1,443,662
Inventories 33,381 e 64,497 22,325 0 a
Prepaid contracts 113,311 51,488 174,799 88,400 i} 1]
Total cument assets 11,382,517 211,992 11,594,509 1,624,272 77,559 9,483,600
Noncurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 0 181,428 181,428 1,026,690 ] 1]
Restricted interest receivable 0 o 0 275 1] 5]
Defermed Debt Expense 0 o 1] 0 0,452 1}
Capital assats: i
Land and Work in Progress 5,036,856 358,543 5,435,439 151,981 1,666,383 1]
Buildings, infrastructure, and equipment, net 29,591,781 35,845,033 65,436,814 5,832,297 10,275,560 0
Total noncument assets 34,626,677 36,425,004 71,053,681 7,011,443 11,951 15 o
Total assets $ 46011194 _§ 36635098 $82846190 _§ BB35715 _§ 12028874 § 0,483,600
Lizbilitias
Current liabllities:
Accounts payable $ 1,531,907 % 463,215 § 1995122 & 167564 & 28,388 § 0
Claims payable 117,543 o] 117,543 4] 0 0
Acerued expense 0 0 1) [ 5,334 1,533
Income Taxes Payable D o 1] 0 o 4,772
Customers deposits 0 o i) - 364473 1] 0
Lime removal liability 0 1] [ 151,000 0 0
Deferred revenue 0,624,233 277,455 9,901,688 108,302 5,304 o]
Bond mterest payable 95,242 33,262 128,534 250 0 0
Cunent portion of long-term obligations 2,476,788 ABE,341 2,643,140 18,097 65,000 0
Taotal current liatdlties 13,845,724 1,240,303 15,086,027 800,686 104,026 6,305
Noncument liabilities:
Noncurment pottion of long-tenm okligations 22,958,515 £,909,204 31,867,800 54,291 345,500 0
Total liabilities 36,804,239 10,149,507 45,053,836 854,977 449 526 5,305
Met Assats
Investmant in capital assets, net of related debé 10,254,878 27,048,807 37,301,665 i} 11,531,453 0
Restricted for: : ’
Public Safsty 46,5363 0 46,385 i} 0 1]
Cutlture and Recraation 221,257 0 221,257 b 0 3,258,596
Fublic Works 126,493 0 126,493 D i) i
Other 0 0 D 783,682 0 1}
Dabt sarvice 0 541,760 541,760 243,483 0 0
Unrestricted {deficit) {1,442.056) {1,101,168) {2,543 224) 6,753,573 47,005 5,218,699
Total net assets 8,206,955 26,487 305 35,694,354 7,780,738 11,579,448 9,477,295
Tolal liabilities and net assets $ 46011194 _§ 36636906 _$ 82,648,190 $ 8835715 § 12,028,974 § 59483600

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Burlington, lowa

Statement of Actlvities
For The Year Ended June 20, 2005

Net {Expense) Revenue and
Program Revenues Changes in Net Assets
Primary Government Component Uniis
Operating Capital Burlington Southeast lowa  Friends of the
: Charges for Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-Type Municipal Regional: Burlington
Programs/Functions Expenses Services Contributijons  Contributions Actlvities Actlvities Total Waterworks Airport Authority Puhlic Library
Primary government: :
Governmental activities: \
General govemnment ' $ 1,488,785 & o $ 138,877 % o § (1320008 % 0 % (1,320908) § a % n % 0
Culture and Recreation 3,560,012 346,628 0 0 (3,213,384} [ -(3,213,384) 0 o 0
Public Safety. 8,622,016 771,955 54,457 15,604 (7,780,610} [} -(7,780,610) 4] 0 0
Communlty-and Econ, Dévelopment 304,048 9,429 11,773 0 {282,846} 0 (282,8486) 0 0 0
Health and Social Services 2,052 ] 0. 0 {2,052} 0 (2,052) 0 0 1]
_Capltal Projects 3,433,235 o .0 5,787,187 2,353,952 1] 2,353,952 0 1} 0
Public works 5,504,824 1,563,778 2,270,999 111,970 (1,558,077) 1] (1,558,077) ¢} 0 0
Interest on long-term debt 1,059,329 i [t] 0 {1,052,329) 0 (1,089,329) 1] 0 0
Total governmental activities 23,955,201 2,691,790 2,476,106 5,915,051 (12,872,254) 1] (12,872,254) - @ 0 1]
Buslhess-type activites:
Sewer 4,072,268 3,096,581 ] 727,233 0 (248,454} (248,454 [y 0 0
Salid waste 1,188,290 1,127,757 0 V] 0 {60,533} (60,533) i} 0 0
Recplax 520,097 81,097 0 4] 0 {435,000} (439,000) 0 0 0
Parking 137,152 35,076 0 [ 0 {101,076} (101,076} 0 0 0
Flint Hills golf cowse 636,944 209,340 0 '] 0 (327,604) (327,604) 0 1] 0
Total business-fype acthvitles 6,454,751 4,560,851 0 727,233 0 (1,176.667) (1.176.867) 0 Q \]
Total primary govarnment $30,400052 § 7,243,641 $ 2476106 § 6642284 § (12,872254) § {1,176667) _§ (14,04898321) _§ o .3 0 & g
Component unlis: T : 7
Burlingion Munlcipal Waterivorks . § 2,627,301 § 2640663 § 0 & 132244 % ¢ 3 0 3§ 0 § 145606 § o & 1]
Friends of the Byrdington Public Librar 2,008,891 0 $ 796,198 ] o] 0 a 0 0 (1,300,693}
Southeast lowa Reglonal Alrport 1,023,249 47,070 129,798 754,068 o] 0 0o 8 ] (98,313 § 1]
Total component units - §_5.753,441 $ 2687733 § 025006 § 836312 § 0 $ 0§ g 8§ 145606 _$ (98,313} _$ (1,300,693)
General revenues;
Taxes:
Property taxes 9,256,700 1] 8,256,700 0 0 [4]
Other City Taxes £,028.019 4] 4,028,019 0 0 [+
Grants and contributions not restricted to specific programs 10,451 0 10,451 0 0 0
Investment Income, Net ) ) 0 0 0 Q- ] 339,906
[nterest 11,482 7374 13,858 30,782 f22 0
Other 2,023,883 £B4,702 2,608,585 4} 151,767 0
Gain (Loss) on disposal of Capltal Asseta (17,112) : - {17,112) 4] 0 0
Transfers 483,675 {483,675) 0 i 0 0
Tatal general revenues and fransfers 15,797 107 108,401 15,806,508 30,782 162,389 939,906




e e

Changes In net assets : 2,924,853 {1,068,266) 1,856,507 176,388 54,076 (960,787}
Net assets - beginning, as restated 6,282,102 27,555,665 33,837,767 7,604,350 11.525,372 10,438,082
Mgt assets - ending $ 9206955 § J6467300 § A5604364 2§ 7,700,738 _§ 11570448 _§ 9477205

The notes ta the financial statements are an integraf part of this statement.
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Clty of Burlington, iowa

Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds
June 30, 2005

]S

Other Total
Road Usa Local Option  Tax Incremant Capital Governmental  Governmental
General Debt Service Tax Sales Tax Financing Projectis Funds Funds
Assels
Cash and cash equivalents 73,492 g +] 0 1] $ 0 - $ 34,176 $ 107,668
Regeivables: :
Interest ) 0] o 1] 0 o 0 0 0
Taxes 5,474,683 1,616,128 0 0 1,237,613 0 1,435,155 9,763,579
Accounts 310,468 0 o] 0 4,799 - o] 21,423 338,690
Special assessmenis B1,085 0 Q o] 1} Y 113,847 194,932
Intergovernmental 06,236 4] 174,647 367,834 4] 108,586 0 747,313
Due from other funds 088,447 0 114,189 +] ] a 527 466 1,630,102
Prepaid contracts 82,204 0 19,856 0 0 0 1,080 103,140
Total assets $ 7,106,615 $ 1,616,128 § 308,592 $ 367,834 $ 1,242,412 $ 108,596 § 2133147 $ 12,883,422
Liabilities and fund balances {deficits)
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 681544 § 0 $ 106.274 & 20,300 § 55,000 $ 499,132 5 74,843 $ 1,437,092
Due to other funds 0 180,024 0 21,165 142,795 - 634,563 229,248 1,217,685
Deferred revenue 5,518,666 1,592,405 0 0 1,238,007 105,397 1,538,954 9,993,429
Total liabilities 5,200,210 1,782,329 106,274 41,465 1,435,802 1,239,092 1,843,045 12,648,216
Fund balances (deficits)
Reserved for encumbrances 11,641 a 7,11 0 0 1,616 1,097 21,525
Reserved for debt service 0 0 o 0 0 ) 0 0 1]
Unreserved, reported in: '
General fund 804,764 0 0 [H] 0 0 0 894,764
Speclal revenue funds g 0 195,248 326,369 (1983,390) 0 289,005 617,232
Debt Service Fund 0 {166,201) G 0 0 0 0 {166,201)
Gapital projects fund 0 0 0 0 0 {1,132,112) 0 (1,132,112)
Tatat fund balances (deficits) 906,405 {166,201) 202,418 326,369 (193,300} {1,130.428) 280,102 235,207
Total liabilities and fund balances {deficiis) $ 7,106,615 3 1.616,128 3 308692 $  367.834 § 1242412 § 108,596 8 2,133,147 $ 12,883,424

The notes o the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Burlington, lowa
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet to the

Statement of Net Assets
For the Year Ended June 30, 2004

Fund baiances—total governmental funds

5 235,207

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different

hecause:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financlal
resources and, therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Governmental fixed assets:
Land
Buildings, Improvements, and equipment, net of depreciation
Less: Internal service fund fixed assets, nat of depreciation

The assets and liabilities of internal service funds are included in the
governmental activites in the statement of net assets. internal
service fund net assets:

Property maintenance fund
Vehicle maintenance fund
Safety coordination fund
Self insurance fund
Miscellaneous service fund

Deferred revenue is reported in governmental funds for revenues that have
been earned but are not yet avallable to liquidate current liabilities. All
earned revenues are reported as income at government-wide level. The
following deferred revenues for unavailable items were reported in the
governmental funds:

Varlous funds - property tax receivable

Geaneral fund - accounts receivable

General fund - special assessments receivable

Tax increment financing fund - accounts receivable

Other governmental funds - accounts receivable

Capital Projects Fund-State reimbursement receivable
Other governmental funds - special assessments receivable

Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable
in the current period and, therefore, are not reported in the funds,
General obligation bonds
Less: Amount applicable to internal senvice funds
Notes payable
Compensated absences
Less: Amount applicable to internal service funds
Bond interest payable
Less: Amount applicable to internal service funds

Net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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$ 2,000,335
32,628,342

(879,433) 33,749,244

$ (142,685)

{77,873}
3,299

(169,414}

(16,820} (403,473)

$ 16,006
40,510
81,085
4,799
9,429
105,397
___ 111970 369,19

$ 24,360,904
(736,060)
186,000
888,410
(47,875)
95,242
(3,402) (24,743,219)

& 9,208,955




cE

Revenues:
Property taxes .
Other taxes and assessmenta
Licenses and permits
Fines and forfeliures
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Use of manay and property
Other

Total revenues

Expendituras:

Cusrent operating:.
Public Safety.
Culture and Recreation
Public Works
Community and Economlc Development
Health and Soclal Services
General Government

Debt service:
Principal
Interest and ather charges

Capital outlay

Tutal expenditures

Excess [deflclency) of revenues
over (under} expanditures

Other financing sources (uses):
Proceeds from ganeral obligation bonds
Transfers in
Transfers out
Total other financing sources and uses

) Net change in fund balance
Fund balances (deficits), beginning

Fund balances (deficlts), ending

City of Burlington, fowa

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and *hanges in Fund Balances (Deflcits)
Govemmental Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

. Other Total
General Debt Road Use Local Option  Tax Increment Caphtal Governmental  Governmentaf
Fund Service _Tax Sales Tax Financing Projecis Funds Funds

$ 5318740 § 1,586,914 % 0 0 $ 1,231,998 $ a % 1,103,051 $ B,240,703
1,036,936 57,842 0 2,803,068 ' 0 18,563 76,302 4,182,801
260,275 4 0 0 1] 0 0 260,275
91,900 u] 4] 0 0 0 1,058 92,958
652,515 ] 2,243,138 0 1] 85,737 7,926 2,989,316
1,398,678 0 0 1} 0 1] 26,892 1,425,670
278,172 856 0 1,438 639 16,692 11,465 308,862
167,721 62,411 0 0 163 116,583 231,627 578,515
9,204,936 1,707,823 2,243,138 2,994,496 1,232.800 237,585 1,458,321 18,079,099
7,974,453 o 0 4] 0 1] 16,808 7,890,261
2,672,012 0 1] 30,000 0 0 532,441 3,234,453
1,700,947 0 1,547,275 1] 1] 0 206,565 3,454,777
231,124 0 -0 o o 0 0 231,124
2,052 0. 1] o] o 0 0 2,052
1,123,808 -0 1 161,659 0 1] 0 1,285,467
4] 1,842,046 1] o 82,554 ] [¢] 2,024,600

1} 994,049 i 0 20,808 0 0 1,014,855

1] - 0 ] o a 4,278,342 0 4,278,342
13,704,306 2,936,095 1,547,275 191,659 103,360 4,278,342 754.804 23,615,931
(4,499,460) (1,228,272) A95.863 2,802,837 1,128,440 {4,040,757) 703,517 (4,436,831}

0 ] 0 0 0 2,925,000 0 2,925,000

4,789,638 1,214,561 0 1] o 628,076 366,454 6,998,729
{429,336) 0 (T06,833) (3.067,962) 1,024,640} {175,554} (1,127,531) {6,531,856)
4,360,302 1,214,561 {706,833} (3.067,9682) (1,024,840} 3,377,522 (761.077) 3,391 .Bf3
{139,158) - {13,711) {10,970) (265,125) 104,800 {663,235) {57,560) (1,044,059
1,045,563 {152.480) 213,388 501.494 (298,190) {467.261) 347,662 1,280,166

$ 906,405 $ (166201) § 202,418 $ 326,369 3 (193,300) _§ (1,130,496) § 280,102 $ 235,207

The notes to the financizl statements are an intagral parf of this statement,
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City of Buriington, lowa

Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues,
Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances (Deficits)
of Governmental Funds o the Statement of Activities

For the Year Ended June 3¢, 2004

Net change in fund balances—-total governmental funds
Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of activities are different
because:

Governmental funds report capital outlays as expenditures while governmental
activities report depreciation expense fo allocate those expenditures over the
life of the assets. This is the amount by which capital outlays exceeded
depreciation in the cumrent period,

Revenues in the statement of activities that do not provide current financial
resources are not reported as revenues in the funds.

Sale of Long-Term Debt not included in Govemmental Activities

Bend proceeds provide current financial resources to governmental funds, but
issuing debt increases long-term labilifies in the statemeant of net assets.
Repayment of bond principal is an expenditure in the governmental funds, but
the repaymenit reduces long-term ltlabilifies in the statement of net assets.

Some expenses reported in the statement of activitles de not require the use of
current financial rescurces and therefore are not reported as expenditures
in governmental funds. The following expenses did not require current financial
resources:
Compensated absences
Adjustment to bond interest payable

Internal service funds are used by management to charge costs of certain
activities, such as vehicle and properfy maintenance, to individual funds.
The net revenue (expense) of the internal service funds is reported with the
governmental activities,

Changes in net assets of governmental activities

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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(840,535)
(8,968)

§  (1.044,959)

5,508,884
368,196

{2,926,000)

2,024,600

{849,503)

{156,365)
§ 2924853




7€

VAssets '

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents-
‘Receivablas:
Interest
Accounts
Due from other funds
Inventories .
Prepaid confracts

Total curfenl assets

Nongcurrent assets:
Restricted cash and cash equivalents
Capital assets:
Land and Work in Progress

Buildings, infrastructure, and equipment, net

"Total noncurrent assets

Total assets

liabilities

Currant llabilities;
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Due to ather funds
Deferred revenue
Bond interest payable
Current portion of long-term abligations

Total current liabilities

Noncurrent liabilities:
Mencurrent portion of long-term obligations

Clty of Burlington, lowa

Statement of Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
Juna 30, 2005
Buslness Type Activifles - Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activities-
Flint Hills Internal Service
Sewer Solid Waste Recplex Parking Golf Course Totals Funds

$ 0 3 0 3 o0 % 0 e % o] 5 o

o 1] 0 0 0 0 0

68,685 11,732 29,471 3,000 6,409 119,388 85,644

1,353,779 0 0 0 0 1,353,779 0

0 0 0 0 31,118 31,1186 33,384

31,463 16,030 6,807 2,041 5,057 61,488 10,171

1,453,928 27,762 36,368 5,131 42 582 1,565,771 129,196

181,428 - 1] 0 0 0 181,428 0

1 a 252,980 129,162 6,400 398,543 0

31,226,700 - 375,188 3,081,110 837,025 3251 35,845,033 879,433

31,408,129 375,188 3,344,080 966,187 331,410 36,425,004 879,433

$32,862,057 § 402950 5 3 380,458 % 971,318 373,992 $ 37,990,775 $ 1,008,629

$ 205202 & 67,645 3 39,231 $ 5,259 55,878 $ 463,215 § 94,815

0 0 0 0 o 0 117,543

0 115,515 586,147 130,227 521,890 1,353,779 412,407

201,672 75,783 0 0 0 277,455 0

31,588 a0z 0 0 802 33,292 3,402
422,801 22512 2,615 347 18,066 466,341 26,439

651,263 282,357 627,993 135,833 594,638 2,594,082 654,606

8,543,182 350,245 7,265 1,043 7.569 8,909,294 757,496
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Total liabilities
Met Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Restricted for:
Dobt service
Unrestricted (deficit)

Taotal net asseis

Total liabilities and net assets

S S (T e s S S S R
9,494,445 632,602 635,248 136,876 604,205 11,503,376 1,412,102
22,367,841 37,279 3,344,090 966,187 331,410 27,046,807 143,373

541,760 0 0 0 0 541,760 0
458,011 (266,931) (598,880) (131,745) {561,623) {1,101.188) (546.846)
23,367,612 (220,652) _ _2,745210 834,442 (230213) __ 26,487,390 (403,473)
$30,862,057_ 5 402950 $ 3380458 § o138 § 373892 _§ 37090775 § 1,008,629

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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City of Burlington, lowa

Statemment of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Business Type Activities - Governmental
Enterprise Funds Activitles-
Fiint Hills Internal Service
Sewer Solid Waste Reeplex Parking Golf Course Totals Funds
Operating revenues: -
Charges for services R 0 § 1,127,757 k3 81,097 3 36,076 3 188,618 $ 1,433,548 % 1,001,957
Sewer Charges Pledged as Security for .

Revenue Bonds ) 3,006,581 0 0 4] 0 3,006,581 0
Imigation Surcharge ' Q W] 0 0 20,722 20,722 G
Other 77,348 940 256,439 27,004 222,881 584,702 274,188

Totél operating revenues 3,173,929 1,128,697 337,536 63,170 432,221 5,135,553 1,366,145

Operating expenses; .
Personal services. 1,378,802 468,912 194,614 51,672 252,059 2,346,149 583,702
Contractual services 645,441 608,030 101,466 19,018 78,279 1,453,234 524,610
Operating supplies 489,543 25,851 117,300 2,425 132,889 768,008 351,388
Depreciation 1,172 501 71,164 106,627 64,037 72,156 1,486,485 44,106

Total operating expenses 3,686,377 1,174,057 520,097 137,152 535,383 6,053,966 ‘ 1,503,806

Operating income (loss) (512,448} (46,260) {182,561) (73,282) (103,162) (918,413) {137,661)

Nonoperating revenues (expenses): .

Interast revenue 7,367 7 0 1} 0 7,374 a9
tnterest expense (385,891) {13,333) 0 1] {1,561) (400,785} {35,506)
Gain on Sale of Assafs 0 0 0 0 0 0 ) 0

Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) {378,524) (13,326) 0 0 {1,561) {393,411) {35,506)

Net income {loss) bafore contributioné and transfers (880,972) {50,586) (182,561) (73,982) {104,723} (1,311,824) {173,167}

Capital caniributions : 727,233 o 0 D 8] ‘727,233 0

Transfers In ) 0 0 0 0 0 a 35,000

Transfers out : {386,442)- {07,233) 1] 0 0 (483,675) {18,198}

Change in net assets (550,181) {'i 56,819) {182,561) (73,982) {104,723) (1,068,266} (156,3635)
Tatal net assets - beginning, as restated 23,917,793 (72.833) 2,927,771 908,424 {125,480) 27,555,665 (247,108}
Total net assets - ending $ 23,367,612 § (229,852) § 2,745.210 $ 834,442 $ (230,213) & 26,487,399 3 {403,473)

The notes to the financial statemenits are an integral part of this statement.
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Cash flaws from operating activities:
Receipts from customers
Payments to suppliers
Payments to employees - )
Internal activity-payments to (from} other funds
Clalms paid {o cutsiders
Other receipts (payments})

Net cash provided {used) by operating activities

Cash flows from noncapital financing activities:
Operating subsidias and fransfers 1o other funds
Operating subsidies and transfers from other funds
Proceeds {paymanis) fromfio interfund accounts

Net cash pravided {used) by noncapital financing activities

Cash flows from capltal and related financing activities:
Proceeds from capital debt
Purchase of capital assats
Principal paid on capital dabt
interest paid on capitat debt
Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Proceeds from Capital Grants

Net cash provided {used) by capltal and
related financing activities

Cash flows fram investing activities:
Interest received ’

Net increase (decreass} In cash and cash equivalents
Balances - beginning of year

Balances - end of year

City of Burlington, lowa

Slatement of Gash Flows
Proprietary Funds
For the Yaar Ended June 30, 2005

Business Type Actlvities - Govarnmental
Enterprse Funds Aciivities-
. Flint Hilis Internal Service
Sewer Solid Wasta Recplex Parking Golf Caurse Totals Funds
3,006,581 % 1,127,757 $ 317,236 $ 83,170 3 432,221 5,036,965 197,952
(1,213,837} (634,881} {218,856) (21,672) {211,168) {2,300,414) (671,305)
{1,371,125) (468,912} {189,466) {51,672} (247,001) (2.:328,178) (569,695)
0 0 0 0 0 0 902,097
0 0 - 0 0 0 0 {124,18%)
77,348 940 D i 0 78,288 266,056
588,967 $ 24,904 $ (91088 B {10,174) $ {25.948) 486,663 $ 914
(386,442} § (97,233} § 0 $ o [i] ] . 0 {483.675) (18,188)
0 0 ¢ ) 1} ) 0 o 35,000
25,242 98,238 01.086 © O0,B76 656,701 371,143 41,264
(364,200) 8 1,005 5 91,086 % 90,876 . % 65.701 (112,532) § 58,066
0. § o % 0 % a % D 0 % 1]
(2,146,113) 1] 0 {80,702} {39,753) (2,266,568} (8,925)
(375,120} {13,380) 1] 0 o {388,500} 0
(387,815) {10,370} o 0 o (397,995} (58,880)
0 ’ 0 1} 0 1] 0
727.233 1] o] 4] 0 727,233 0
(2,181,615) § (23,750) § 0 3 {80.702) § (39,753) {2,325820) & {67.905)
7367 & 7% 0 8 0 3 0 7374 & 0
{1,946,481) § 2,186 $ 0§ 0§ 0 (1,944,315 § (8,925}
2,127,909 Q 0 a Q 2,127,909 0
. 181428 § 2168 _§ ¢ § 0§ i 183,504 % (8,925)




Reconclliation of operating income (loss) io net cash
pravided {used) by operating activities:
Operating Income {loss)
Ad|ustments to reconcile operating income{loss) to net cash
provided {used) by operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes In assets and llabilities:
Receivaples, net
Inventorles
Prepaid contracts
Accounts and other payables
Defamed revenus

Net cash provided {used) by operating activities

—_——

1 G S S SR B
$  (512448) §  (46260) § (162561) § (73982) §  (103,162) §  (918413) §  (137661)
1,172,501 71,164 106,627 64,037 72,156 1,486,485 44,106
87,763 (8,856) (24,921) (880) (1,388) 51,738 (8.292)

0 0 0 0 (4,404) (4,404) (4,742)

(4.417) (895) 140 (145) 73 (4,944) 266)
(164,815) 4,494 9,629 390 10,757 {138.745) 107,769
9,883 5.257 0 0 0 15,140 0

5 588967 § 24904 §_ (91.086) § (9.980) § (25048) § 486,857 % 914

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement.
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CiTY OF BURLINGTON, IOWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

I Summary of significant accounting policies
A. Financial Reporting Entity

The City operates under the Council/Manager form of government. A wide
variety of services are provided by the City of Burlington including garbage and
sewer collection, wastewater treatment, police and fire protection, library facilities,
street maintenance, public transportation, parks and recreation facilities, planning
and zoning, and general administration.

As required by accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America, these financial statements are to include the primary government and its
component units--organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountabie or for which the nature and significance of their relationship with the
primary government are such that exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s
financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

The City of Burlington, lowa is a municipal corporation governed by a Board of
Trustees, which is elected by the public and has the exclusive responsibility and
accountability for the decisions it makes. The City has the statutory authority to
adopt its own budget, to levy taxes, and to issue bonded debt without the
approval of another government. It has the right to sue and be sued, and has the
right to buy, sell, lease, or mortgage property in its own name. Based on these
criteria, the City is considered a primary government.

Discretely Presented Component Units

The Burlington Municipal Waterworks supplies water to the homes, businesses,
and industries throughout the City of Burlington, the City of West Burlington, and
to limited areas in Des Moines County.

The Burlington Municipal Waterworks and the City of Burlington are considered
separate legal entities. The Burlington Municipal Waterworks meets the
component unit definition as a voting majority of the Waterworks’ Board of
Trustees is appointed by the City, and the Waterworks is fiscally dependent upon
the City. The Waterworks is a business-type activity.

Complete financial statements for the component unit may be obtained at the
Burlington Municipal Waterworks, 500 North 3™ Street, Burlington, lowa.

The Southeast lowa Regional Airport Authority (SIRAA) operates the airport
within the City of Burlington’s city limits. The City of West Burlington and the City
of Burlington formed the SIRAA on July 1, 1996. Commercial air service from two
commercial airlines as well as other air transportation and recreation services
from an aviation service provider are offered to the reglons of southeast lowa and
western lllinois.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, IOWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

(-

The SIRAA and the City of Burlington are considered separate legal entities. The
SIRAA meets the discretely presented component unit definition as a voting
majority of the SIRAA’'s Board of Trustees is appointed by the City, and the
SIRAA is fiscally dependent upon the City. The SIRAA is a business-type
activity.

Complete financial statements for the component unit may be obtained at the
Southeast lowa Regional Airport Authority, 2515 Summer Street, Burlington,
lowa. )

The Friends of the Burlington Public Library Foundation exist for the purpose of
attracting funds to benefit the Public Library which serves the Burlington area and
to disburse those funds in a manner which will benefit the Library. The foundation
is reported as a business type activity.

There are no other organizations or agencies whose financial statements shouid
be combined and presented with the City’s financial statements.

B. Measurement focus and basis of accounting

The accounts of the City are organized and operated on the basis of funds. A
fund is an independent fiscal and accounting entity with a self-balancing set of
accounts. Fund accounting segregates funds according to their intended
purpose and is used to aid management in demonstrating compliance with
finance-related legal and contractual provisions. The minimum number of funds
are maintained consistent with legal and managerial requirements.

The City has the following fund types:

Governmental funds are used to account for the City's general government
activities. Govemmental fund types use the flow of current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Under the
modified accrual basis of accounting, revenues are recognized when susceptible
to accrual (i.e., when they are “measurable and available”). *Measurable” means
that the amount of the transaction can be determined and “available” means
collected within the current period or expected to be collected soon enough
thereafter to pay liabilities of the current period. The City considers all revenues
available if they are collected within 60 days after year-end.

Property taxes, service charges, special assessments, and fines and forfeitures
are susceptible fo accrual. Sales taxes are considered susceptible to accrual at
the time the underlying transaction occurs. Road use, and other taxes collected
and being held by the state or other levying authority at year-end on behalf of the
City are recoghized as revenue. Licenses and permits and other receipis
become measurable and available when cash is received by the City and are
recognized as revenue at that time.

Intergovernmental revenues are recognized at the time of receipt or earlier if the
susceptible to accrual criteria are met. Expenditure driven grants are recognized
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, IOWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 38, 2005

as revenue when the qualifying expenditures have been incurred and all other
grant requirements have been met, if the susceptible fo accrual criteria are met.

Expenditures are recorded when the related fund liability is incurred, except for
certain long-term obligations including debt service principal and interest,
compensated absences, and claims and judgments. Expenditures related to such
liabilities are only recognized under modified accrual accounting when they
mature (when due).

Governmental funds include the following fund types:

The General Fund is the City’s primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial
resources of the City, except those required to be accounted for in another fund.

The special revenue funds account for revenue sources that are legally restricted
to expenditure for specific purposes (not including revenues restricted for general
fund activities, debt service expenditures, or capital projects) and are not
fiduciary.

The Debt Service Fund accounts for the servicing of general long-term debt not
being financed by proprietary funds.

The Capital Projects Fund accounts for acquisition of fixed assets or construction
of major capital projects not being financed by proprietary or fiduciary funds.

Proprietary funds are accounted for using -the flow of economic resources
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. Under this method,
revenues are recognized when earned and expenses are recognized at the time
the liabilities are incurred. The City applies all applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989,
unless .those pronouncements conflict with or contradict Governmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB}) pronouncements

Propnetary funds dlstlngmsh operatlng revenues and expenses from
nonoperating items. Operating revenues and expenses generally result from
providing services and producing and delivering goods in connection with a
proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The principal operating revenues
from the City’s proprietary funds are charges to customers for sales, rentals and
services. Operating expenses for the proprietary funds include cost of personal
services, confractual services, operating supplies, self insurance claims, and
depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and expenses not meeting this
definition are reported as nonoperating revenues and expenses.

Proprietary funds include the following fund types:

The enterprise funds are used to account for those operations that are financed
and operated in a manner similar to private business or where the -City Council
has decided that the determination of revenues earned, costs incurred and/or net
incame is necessary for management accountability.
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The internal service funds account for operations that provide services to other
departments or agencies of the City, or to other governments, on a cost-
reimbursement basis.

Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the City in a trustee or agency
capacity for the benefit of others. Fiduciary funds account for assets held by the
City under the terms of a formal trust agreement and which cannot be used {o
support City aclivities. Fiduciary funds use the economic resources
measurement focus and the full accrual basis of accounting. The City has no
fiduciary funds.

C. Financial statement presentation

The basic financial statements include the government-wide financial statements
(based on the City as a whole) and the fund financial statements. The
government-wide statements present consolidated information from both the
governmental and business-type activities using the economic resource
measurement focus and the accrual basis of accounting. The government-wide
statements are the Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities.

The Statement of Activities presents, for each City acfivity, the extent to which
direct expenses are being supported by program revenues or by general
revenues. Direct expenses are those that are clearly identifiable with the specific
activity (including depreciation). Program revenues are charges for services,
grants, contributions, or other revenues that are either restricted for use or are
directly associated with the particular activity. General revenues include interest,
taxes, and other revenues used to support City operations that are not directly
associated with a particular activity.

The City does not employ an indirect cost allocation system. Administrative
transfers are made to the General Fund by other operating funds to cover
General Fund services such as finance, legal, management, and information
services. These transfers are eliminated for government-wide reporting by
reducing revenues and expenses in the General fund.

Governmental activities in the govermment-wide statements include the
operations from the govermmental funds: the General Fund, the Special Revenue
Funds, the Debt Service Fund, and the Capital Projects Fund adjusted from the
modified accrual fo the full accrual basis of accounting. Govermmental activities
also include the activities from the intemal service funds. Business-type activities
in the government-wide siatements are comprised of the Enterprise Funds.
Fiduciary funds are not reported in the government-wide statements, because
these funds cannot be used to support City activities. As a general rule, interfund
activity has been eliminated from the government-wide statements.

The government-wide statements apply all applicable Financial Accounting
Standards Board pronouncements issued on or before November 30, 1989
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CiTY OF BURLINGTON, IOWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

unless those pronouncements conflict with or contradict Govemmental
Accounting Standards Board (GASB) pronouncements.

The fund financial statements present the City's activities at the fund level rather
than on a city-wide basis. The fund financial statements report the govemmental
funds using the modified accrual basis of accounting and the proprietary funds
using the full accrual basis of accounting. Fund financial statements would also
include statements for the fiduciary funds., The fund financial statements for both
the governmental and the proprietary funds report the major funds individually
and the non-major funds combined.

(GASB statement number 34 sets forth the minimum criteria for the determination
of major funds. If a fund's assets, liabilities, revenues, or expenditures/expenses
are at least ten percent of those of its fund type and at ieast five percent of those
of both governmenta! and proprietary fund types, then it must be a major fund.
The City also elects to report certain funds as major funds.that did not meet the
percentage test, but are of a special interest to the City Council and the
community.

The City has the following major governmental funds:

The General Fund, the Debt Service Fund, the Capital Projects Fund, and the
following Special Revenue Funds:

The Road Use Tax Fund accounts for state road use taxes aliocated to the City to
be used to maintain and improve the City’s street system.

The Local Option Sales Tax Fund accounts for revenue received from a one
percent sales tax levied by the City to be used for community protection, property
tax relief, and capital improvements.

The Tax [ncrement Financing Fund accounts for taxes collected on the
incremental increase in the value of property located within the tax increment
financing districts and to be used for activities within those districts.

The City has the following major proprietary funds:

The Sewer Fund acéounts for the operations of a municipally owned wastewater
treatment plant and its related sewer infrastructure.

The Solid Waste Fund accounts for the activities assomated with the collection
and dlsposa! of solld waste

The Recplex Fund accounts for the operations of the municipally owned family
recreation comp1ex

The Parking Fund accounts for the activities associated with the City's parklng
system.
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CITY OF BURLINGTON, IOWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

The Flint Hills Golf Course Fund accounts for the operation of the municipally
owned golf course.

The non-major funds are shown combined in the fund financial statements but
are presented individually in the combining statements following the notes to the
financial statements.

The internal service funds are shown combined at the far right of the proprietary
fund financial statements. The individual internal service funds are presented in
the combining statements. The City has the following internal service funds:

The Property Maintenance Fund accounts for the activities associated with
maintaining and servicing the City’s buildings and grounds beyond fraditional
janitorial service on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Vehicle Maintenance Fund accounts for the operations of a central vehicle
maintenance garage and fuel distribution system. All costs incurred for vehicle
maintenance, operations, and fuel are charged to departments and other
governments on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Safety Coordination Fund accounts for the operations of the safety
coordinator. All costs incurred for such activities are charged to funds and other
governments on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Self Insurance Fund accounts for insurance claims against the City and the
administration of the self insurance plan. All paid claims and administration costs
are charged to depariments as premiums based on departmental claims
experience. Premiums are designed on a cost reimbursement basis.

The Miscellaneous Service Fund accounts for miscellaneous activities and
purchases incurred on the behalf of all City departments. All costs incurred are
expected to be reimbursed by departments on a cost reimbursement basis.

The modified accrual basis of accounting as employed by the governmental funds
and the full accrual basis of accounting as employed by the proprietary and
fiduciary funds have numerous timing and treatment differences. Differences that
include the recording of long-term liabilities, the recording of fixed asset
purchases and disposals, and the timing of recognized revenues.
Reconciliation’s are provided for governmental funds to reconcile fund balance to
net assets and to reconcile the changes in fund balance to the changes in net
assets. These reconciliation’s are a part of the fund financial statements.

D. Assets, liahilities, and fund equity
Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments
The City maintains a cash pool in order to maximize interest returns. Income
from the cash pool is allocated to individual funds based on the fund's average

monthly cash balance and legal requirements. Accounting records are
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maintained to show the portion of the pooled account attributable to each
participating fund. Fund cash deficits are treated as interfund loans.

The City, the SIRAA, the Wateiworks and Library Foundation consider all highly
liquid investments with maturities of three months or less to be considered cash
equivalents.

Investments are stated at their fair value or amortized cost. The Waterworks and
the City invested in only certificates of deposit at June 30, 2005. GASB
Statement 31 does not require fair value reporting for these types of investments.
The SIRAA has investments at June 30, 2005 for a deferred compensation plan
which are invested in an annuity account and are recorded at their fair value. The
Library Foundation has investments in-U.S. Government obligations, corporate
debt securities and equity securities which are stated at fair market value.

Interfund Balances

Transactions between funds that are representative of long-term
lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at the end of the fiscal year are
referred to as “advances to/from other funds” to indicate the non-current nature of
the interfund loans. All other outstanding balances between funds are expected
to be repaid within one year and reported as “due to/from other funds.”

Advances between funds reported in the fund financial statements are offset by a
fund balance reserve account in applicable govemmental funds to indicate they
are not available for appropriation and are not expendabie available financial
resources.

Interfund balances are eliminated at the government-wide level. Those that are
between governmental and business-type activities ‘are shown as intemnal
balances and eliminated from the totals column. Those that are between funds
that are within the same activity are eliminated altogether.

Property Taxes

Property taxes are recognized in the year in which the-levy is due and collectable.
No property tax levy date is established by the State of lowa, however, the
current tax levy, which is due and collectable during the year ending June 30,
2005 was certified on March 15, 2004 by the local taxing authority, Des Moines
County, based on January 1, 2003 valuations establishing a lien date of March
15, 2004. Property taxes are due in two installments with the first half becoming
delinquent after September 30 and the second half after March 21 of the
following year. Property taxes are accrued at year-end if they are measurable
and are available to pay current liabilities.

Property taxes certified on March 15, 2005 for the fiscal year beginning on July 1,
2005 are accrued as of June 30, 2005 because a lien attaches at the date of
certification. This portion of the receivable is offset by deferred revenue, because
these taxes are not permitted for use until July 1, 2005. : :
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Inventories and Prepaid Coniracts

Inventories are carried at cost using the first-inffirst-out (FIFO) methed. The
Waterworks’ inventory is valued at the lower of cost or market using the FIFO
method.

Certain payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to future accounting periods
and are recorded as prepaid items.

Restricted Assets

Ceriain proceeds of the City's sewer fund revenue bonds, as well as certain
resources set aside for their repayment, are classified as restricted assets on the
balance sheet. These assets are restricted due to revenue bond covenants
requiring that monies be set aside and used solely for the protection and
repayment of the revenue bond hoiders.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the
City's policy to use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they
ara needed.

Capital Assels

Capital assets used in governmental and business-type activities of the City are
recorded at cost or estimated historical cost if purchased or constructed.
Donated fixed assets are recorded at their estimated fair market value at the date
of donation.

The City capitalizes new public domain (infrastructure) capital assets (e.g., roads,
bridges, sidewalks, street lights, etc.) used in governmental activities beginning
with the year ending June 30, 2001. Retroactive reporting of infrastructure fixed
assets used in governmental activities is not reported but is required to be
presented by June 30, 2007, All infrastructure assets for business-type activities
that meet the capitalization threshold are reported.

The cost of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add to the value of the
asset or materially extend the asset's life are not capitalized.

Major outlays for capital assets and improvements are capitalized as
construction-in-progress as the projects are constructed.

All assets capitalized by the City must have a useful life of two years or more and
have a cost that exceeds the following minimum thresholds:
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Assefs Threshold
Infrastructure $ 50,000
Land Improvements 50,000
Buildings 20,000
Building Improvements 20,000
Vehicles 5,000
Machinery and Equipment 2,500

Prbperty, plant and equipment are depreciated using the straight line method of
depreciation with half-year convention over the following estimated useful lives:

Assets ' Years
Infrastructure 50
Land Improvements : 12-20
Buildings 40
Building Improvements 20
Vehicles 4-12
Machinery and Equipment 5-10

- Capital assets are reported at the fund level for proprietary funds, but not for
governmental funds,

‘The SIRAA records property and equipment at cost and depreciation is computed
using the straight-line method at rates based on the following useful lives:

Assets Years
Infrastructure : 5-39
Buildings and Improvements 5-39
Furniture and Equipment 5-7

The Waterworks computes depreciation using the 150% declining balance
method using the following useful lives:

Assets Years
Distribution System 10-50
Land Improvements 15-30
Buildings 10-33
Filter Equipment 15-40
Purification Equipment 10-20
Power/Pumping Equipment - 10-40
Vehicles : 6-7
-Furniture and Fixtures _ . 3-10
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Compensated Absences

It is the City's policy to permit employees to accumulate earned but unused
vacation and sick pay benefits. Vacation pay is payable to employees upon
termination or retirement while sick pay is payable only upon retirement. A
liability has been recorded for all earned but unused vacation benefits, and for
those eamed but unused sick ieave benefits that are considered eligible in the
governmental and business-type activities at the government-wide level.

Accrued vacation and sick leave benefits are reported as a liability in the
proprietary funds using the same basis as the activities at the government-wide
level. In governmental funds, however, these accrued benefits are considered
long-term liabilities similar to that of iong-term debt and are not reported as a fund
liability.

Long-term Debt

In the government-wide financial statements the City reports long-term debt of
govemmental and business-type activities at face value net of the applicable
premiums or discounts. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance
costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the effective
interest method. Issuance costs are reported as deferred charges. The same
treatment is applied to proprietary fund types in the fund financial statements.

in the governmental fund statements, bond premiums and discounts, as well as
issuance costs, are recognized during the current period. Bond proceeds are
reported as an other financing source net of the applicable premium or discount.
Issuance costs are reported as an expenditure. Long-term debt and associated
accrued interest are not reported in governmental funds.

Fund Equity and Net Assets

Reservations of fund balance represent amounts that are not appropriable or are
legally separated for a specific purpose. Designations of fund balance represent
tentative management plans that are subject to change.

Restrictions of net assets represent restrictions placed upon the net assets by
parties outside the City (such as creditors, grantors, contributors, or other
governments). Normally, net assets subject to self-imposed restrictions are not
reported as restricied net assets. However, restrictions imposed by City
ordinance, legislation, or election are included as resiricted net assets.

Restricted net assets directly related to restricted assets from revenue bond

covenants are reported in an amount equal to the restricted assets less any
related liabilities.
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Prior Period Adjustments.

In fiscal year 2003-2004, the State of lowa transferred jurisdiction to the City of
that portion of lowa Highway 98 located within the city limits. The City increased
-the value of net assets for governmental purposes by the value of the roadway
net of depreciation. For fiscal 2004-2005, the beginning vaiue of fixed assets was
adjusted to reflect the gross value of the asset. Additionally, accumulated
depreciation was adjusted to reflect the total accumulated depreciation. The total
net value of fixed assefs was unchanged.

Additionally, in fiscal year 2003-2004, the City capitalized the value of golf carts
leased for use at Flint Hills Golf Course. The value recognized was overstated by
$17,219 and depreciation was over stated by $1,231. For fiscal year 2004-2005,
the beginning value of assets for business type activities and accumulated
depreciation were adjusted downward by this amounts.

Finally, in 1993, the City entered into an agreement with Pheasant Run, Inc. to
develop the Pheasant Run subdivision utilizing Tax Increment Financing (TIF).
Under the terms of the agreement if TIF revenues were not sufficient o meet the
City's debt service requirements the developers would advance the necessary
funds to the City. The developers would be reimbursed once TIF revenues were
available. As of June 30, 2004 the city owed a total of $127,439 to the
developers to be repaid over the next three fiscal years. This obligation had not
prev:ously been recognized.

IL STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

The following City funds have a deficit in fund balance or net assets as of June

30, 2005:
Deficit
Balance
Capital Projects $ 1,130,496
Debt Service 166,201
Special Revenue; ‘
Tax Increment Financing 193,390
Community Development . 65,036
Recreation S 117,211
Airport Levy ' 36,944
Internal Service: ' '
Property Mamtenance 142,665
Self Insurance _ 169,415
- Miscellaneous | - 16,820

Vehicle Maintenance ' 77,873
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CASH AND INVESTMENTS

As of June 30, 2005, the carrying amount of the City's cash deposits which
includes certificates of deposit total $289,096 with bank balances of $596,059.
The bank balances are covered entirely by federal depository insurance or by the
State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This
chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories fo insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

As of June 30, 2005, the carrying amount of deposits, related bank balances, and
other cash, including fiduciary funds, were as follows:

Carrying Bank

Amount Balance
Demand Deposits $ 284,220 $ 596,059
Certificates of Deposit 0 0
Petty Cash 4,875 0
Total 3 289,085 § 596,059

The Southeast lowa Regional Airport Authority's deposits at June 30, 2005 are
entirely covered by federal depository insurance or by the State Sinking Fund in
accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This chapter provides for
additional assessments against the depositories to insure there will be no loss of
funds.

Cash balances as of June 30, 2005, consisted of unrestricted cash of $35,801.
The cash balances are entirely from checking and savings deposits.

The Burlington Municipal Waterworks' carrying amount of deposits was 3
2,125,485 all of which are covered by federal depository insurance or by the
State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This
chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of funds.
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The Library foundation had cash deposits of $1,757,513. Investments held by
the foundation were as follows:

U. S. Treasury Notes $ 300,000
U. 8. Agency obligations 1,001,349
Certificates of deposit 1,155,521
Corporate debt securities 1,129,709
Fixed income funds 1,422,952
Equity securities 691,284
Equity funds _ 547.210
Total $ 6,248,025

The City, the SIRAA, and the Waterworks are authorized by statute to invest in
public funds in obligations of the United States government, its agencies and
instrumentalities; certificates of deposit or other evidences of deposit at federally
insured depository institutions approved by City Council, Board of Trustees,
Authority Board or Treasurer of the State of lowa; prime eligible bankers
acceptances; certain high rated commercial paper; perfected repurchase
agreemsnts; certain registered open-end management investment companies;
certain joint investment trusts; and warrants or improvement certificates of a
drainage district.

Interest Rate Risk. The City’s investment policy limits the investment of operating
funds (funds expected to be expended in the current budget year of within fifteen
months of receipt) in instruments that mature within 397 days. Funds not
identified as operating funds may be invested in instruments with maturities
langer than 397 days, but the maturities shall be consistent with the needs and
use of the City. The City did not hold any instruments with a maturity greater than
397 days during the year.

Credit Risk. The City's investment policy limits investments in commercial paper
and other corporate debt to the top two highest classifications. The City did not
invest in any commercial paper or other corporate debt during the year.

Concentration of Credit Risk. The City’s investment policy does not allow for a
prime bankers' acceptance or commercial paper and other corporate debt
balances to be greater than ten percent of its total deposits and investments.
The policy also limits the amount that can be invested in a single issue to five
percent of its total deposits and lnvestments The C[ty held no such investments
during the year. : :

Custodial Credit Risk — Deposits. In the case of deposits, this is the risk that in
the event of a bank failure, the government’s deposits may not be retumed to it.
The City’'s deposits are entirely covered by federal depository insurance ar by the
State Sinking Fund in accordance with Chapter 12C of the Code of lowa. This
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chapter provides for additional assessments against the depositories to insure
there will be no loss of public funds.

Custodial Credit Risk - Investment. For an investment, this is the risk that, in the
event of the failure the counterparty, the government will not to be able fo recover
the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of
an outside party. The City did not hold any investment during the year.

LEASES RECEIVABLE

The City has entered into a non-cancelable lease agreement with Downtown
Partner’s, Inc. for the use and sale of a historic trolley. The asset was purchased
by the City during fiscal year 2001 for $35,000 and is being depreciated using the
straight line method of depreciation with half-year convention over the seven year
term of the lease (5 year life). Accumulated depreciation is $31,500.

The lease payments amount to $5,000 per year for seven years for a total of
$35,000 in lease payments. Five payments are still remaining on the lease
agreement. Downtown Partner's, Inc. has the option to buy the trolley for $1 at
the end of the lease agreement
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V.

CAPITAL ASSETS

Capital asset activity for the year ended June 30, 2005, is as follows:

Governmental activities:
Undeprectated:

Land

Work—_ih-progress

Total, undepreciated
Depreciated:

Land improvements

Infrastructure

Buildings

Building improvements

Fhdures and equipment

Vehicles

Total, depreciated
Accumulated depreciation:

Land Improvements

infrastructure

Bulldings

Building improvements

Fixtures and equipment

Vehicles

Tota accumulated depreciation
Governmental activifies

fixed assets, net

Business-typs activities:
Undepreciated:

Land

Work-in-progress

Tutal, undepreciated
Bepreciated:

Land Improvements

Infrastructure

Buildings

Building improvements

Fixtures and equipment

Vehicles

Total, depreciated
Accumulated depreciation:

Land improvements

Infrastructure

Buildings

Building improvements

Fixtures and equipment

Vehicles

Total accumulated depreciation
Business-iype activities

fixed assels, net

Balance Balance
June 30, 2004 Ingreases Decreases June 30, 2005
$ 2,000,335 o % 0§ 2000335
1,584,095 3,075,822 1,554,095 3,075,922
3,654,430 3,075,922 1,554,095 5,076,257
1,154,186 0 0 1,154,186
16,727,160 1,708,120 0 18,435,280
6,697,594 2,744,786 o] 9,442,380
4,954 197 0] o] 4,954,197
4,176,993 276,020 29,576 4,423,446
5,256,915 286,475 235,136 5,308,254
38,067,045 5,015410 264,712 43,717,743
895,201 18,242 0 813,443
2,068,196 387,171 0 2,455,367
1,223,380 193,485 0 1,416,875
2,090,146 250,449 0 2,340,505
3,315,956 204,834 20,576 3,401,214
3,367,257 419,155 238,585 3,547,827
12,960,146 1,473,336 268,161 14,165,321
$ 20,561,329 6,617,996 & 1,550,646 § 34,628,679
Balarice Balance
June 30, 2004 Increases Decreases June 30, 2005
$ 398,543 0 % 0 3% 398,543
6,936,557 90,000 6,836,557 90,000
7,335,100 90,000 6,936,557 488,543
2,256,525 7.A50 0 2,263,975
15,676,574 8,886,204 0 24,562,778
25,313,523 [ 0 25,313,523
1,148,312 46,439 G 1,192,751
1,841,541 192,453 30,300 2,003,694
1,495,070 56,721 130,951 1,420,840
47,729,545 9,189,267 161,251 56,757,661
1,231,041 79,104 D 1,310,145
3,779,727 425 268 o] 4,204,993
12,379,548 516,383 D 12,889,931
251,290 80,280 0 331,570
1,004,035 165,308 30,900 1,220,043
807,954 126,144 87,250 936,348
19,633,595 . 1,486,485 117,550 21,002,530
$ 35431,050 7,792,782 0§ 6980258 § 36,243,574
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Depreciation expense was charged to the activities of the primary government as

follows:
] Burtingion
Governmental activities:

Public Safety $ 386,104
Cuitural and Recreation 310,891
Public Works ' 744,568
Community and Economic Development 7,574
General government 24,199

Total depreciation expense - governmental activities $1,473,336
Business-type activities:

Sewer $ 1,172,501
Solid waste 71,164
Recplex 106,627
Parking - 64,037
Flint Hills golf course 72,156

Total depreciation expense - business-type activities $ 1,486,485

The following is a summary of capital assets for the Burlington Municipal
Waterworks for the year ended June 30, 2005:

Balance Batance
June 30, 2004 Increases Decreases June 30, 2005
Undepreciated:
Land § 120,481 $ 31500 % D 5% 151,981
Depreciated:
Land improvements 715,580 0 D 715,580
Buildings and filter equipment 2,230,529 14,087 0 2.244 536
Purification equipment 703,434 52,007 o 755,441
FPower/pumping equipment 2,565,465 13,520 1] 2,578,994
Distrbution system and
equipment 8,200,211 235,749 ¢ 8,444,960
Fumiture and fixures 61,959 64,361 0 126,320
Vehicles 366,801 35,742 24,085 378,448
Total, depreciated 14,852,979 415,455 24,085 15,244,339
Accumulated depreciation:
Land improvements 232,299 0 . 0 232,299
Buildings and filter equipment 1,617,104 59,093 0 1,676,197
Purification equipment 634,606 51,091 0 685,897
Pawer/pumping equipment 1,492,004 73,873 0 1,566,067
Distribution system and 4,753,755 153,852 0 4,907,707
equipment : .
Fumniture and fixures 51,313 o 0 51.313
Vehicles 316,856 0 0 316,856
Total accumulated depreciation 9,008,027 338,109 0 9,436,136
Fixed assels, nat $ 5875433 § 108846 § 24095 § 5,960,184
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The following is a summary of capital assets for the Southeast Iowa Regional Airport Authority
for the year ended June 30, 2005:

Southeast Jowa
Regional
Airport Authority
Land : i - 1,666,393
Land Improvements 10,620,039
Buildings and Improvements 2,102,058
Furniture and Fixtures 1.048.403
Total 15,436,893
Accumulated Depreciation 3.494,940
Net $ 11,941,953
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VL. INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES AND TRANSFERS:
Due to/from other funds:
Receivable Fund Payable Fund Amount
General Tax Increment Financing $ 142,795
Debt Service 189,924
Local Option Sales Tax 21,165
Capital Projects 634,563
Total General 988,447
Hotel/Motel . Recreation 108,615
Special Assessments 1,304
Community Development 65,117
Employee Benefiis 14,460
Airport Levy 39,752
Total Hotel/Motel . - 229,248
Special Contribufions ) Property Maintenance 51,016
Vehicle Maintenance 185,135
Self Insurance 22,904
Miscellanecus Service 6,207
Total Special Contributions : 265,262
Road Use Tax Property Maintenance 114,189
Bridgse Safety Coordination 32,956
Enierprise:
Sewer: RecPlex 586,147
Parking 130,227
Flint Hills Golf Course 521,880
Solid W aste 115,615
Total Sewer 1,353,779

Generally, interfund balances reflect the internal borrowing between funds to
cover cash shortages. In the case of the Debt Service Fund, the payable from
the Parking Fund reflects the Parking Funds share of debt service obligations it
has not been able to meet.

At the government-wide level, interfund receivables and payables are eliminated
that are within the same activity. The remaining interfund loans are eliminated as
internal balances in the Statement of Net Assets.

Transfers generally move resources from the fund statutorily required to collect
resources to the fund statutorily required to expend resources. In addition,
payments in lieu of taxes from enterprise funds to the general fund is treated as a
transfer between those funds.
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Interfund transfers for the year ended June 30, 2005 were as follows:

Transfers In:
Debt Capital Nonmajor Infernal
Generzl Senvice Projects Governmental  TaxIncrement  Sewer Senvice
Fund Fund Fund Funds Fud  Furd Furds Total
Trarsfers out
General Fund $ 0§ 21882 % 0 $ 366454 % 0 % 0 535000 § 429336
Road use taxfund 574,377 132,456 - 0 0 0 0 § 706833
Locat aption sales tax furd 2,478,462 o 589,500 0 a 0 0 § 3067962
Tax increment financing fund 100,000 824,640 0 0 o 0 0 § 1,024,640
Nonmajor governmental funds 1,088,955 0 38,576 0 ] 0 0 § 1127531
Sewer fund 386,442 0 0 0 0 0 0 § 3s6442
Solidwastefund 97,233 0 0 0 0 0 0 & 9723
Capiial Projects 45,971 129,583 Q 0 0 0 0 $ 175554
Internal Service Funds . 18,198 g 0 0 0 0 0 % 18198
$ 4789638 $ 1214561 $ 628076 § 386454 § - § - $ 35000 % 7083729

e N i I A A—
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Vil. DEFERRED REVENUE

Under both the accrual and the modified accrual methods of accounting, revenue
may be recognized only when it is earned. If assets are recognized in connection
with a transaction before the earnings process is complete, those assets must be
offset with a corresponding liability for deferred {(unearned) revenue. The
following funds had deferred (unearned) revenue at June 30, 2005:

General Unearned Rent $ 9,992

_ Succeeding Year Taxes 5,376,613

Debt Service Succeeding Year Taxes 1,687,797
Tax Increment Financing Succeeding Year Taxes 1,233,208
Other Governmental Succeeding Year Taxes 1,416,624
Sewer _ Unearned Sewer Fees 201,672

- Solid Waste ' Unearned Trash Fees - 75,783
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Governmental funds also record deferred (unavailable) revenue for revenues that
The

following funds had deferred (unavailable) revenues at June 30, 2005.

General Fund

Tax Increment Financing
Capital Projects
Other Governmental

have been earned but are not available to liguidate current liabilities.
Accounts Receivable $ 40,510
Special Assessments Receivable 81,085
Delinquent Taxes 10,466
Accounts Receivable 4,799
State Reimbursement 105,397
Accounts Receivable 9,429
Special Assessments Receivable 111,970
Delinquent Taxes 932
Delinquent Taxes 4,608

.Debt Service

The Waterworks had deferred revenue for unearned water fees of $109,302 and
the SIRAA had deferred revenue for unearned rent of $5,304.
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Vil

LONG-TERM DEBT

General Obligation Bonds. The City issues general obligation bonds to provide
funds for the acquisition and construction of infrastructure, major capital facilities,
and other major fixed assets. General obligation bonds have been issued for
both general government and proprietary activities. These bonds are reported in
proprietary funds if they are expected to be repaid from proprietary fund
revenues. General obligation bonds as of June 30, 2005 consist of the following
- individual issues: ' :

Issue Amount Interest Balance

] Debt Date lssued Rates June 30, 2005
General corporate 09/M/97 4,500,000 4,30-5.25 2,095,000
General corporate 09/01/98 5,245,000 4.05-5.00 2,025,000
General carporate 09/01/98 950,000 5.85-6.80 765,000
General corperate 09/01/99 2,800,000 4.25-5.00 1,950,000
General corporate 06/01/00 4,700,000 4.95-5.80 4,300,000
General corporate 07/16/01 540,000 3.00-4.50 375,000
General corporate 11/05/01 2,500,000 3.00-4.50 2,170,000
General corporate 06/01/02 4,400,000 4.00-4.40 4,400,000
General Refunding 05/29/03 2,190,000 2.00-2.15 1,080,000
General corporate 06/01/04 3,425,000 3.75-4.10 3,425,000
G. O. Sewer 07/01/03 5,000,000 3.4-4.0 5,000,000
Library Note 03/14/05 700,000 3 700,000
Community Field Note  05/23/05 425,000 4.15 425,000
Aquatic Center Note 04/20/05 1,800,000 8 1,800,000
$ 39,175,000 3 30,520,000
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Future debt service requirements for the outstanding general obligation bonded
indebtedness are as follows: '

Year Governmental Adtivities Business Type Adtivities

Ending

June 30 Principal Interest Principal Interest Total
206 221749% 201,112 48,266 283,039 3539913
2007 2,266,180 903,422 B7HA 280,615 3,588,851
2008 1,940,226 890,367 148,046 278,195 3,266,834
2009 1,944,091 812,046 149,760 272,238 3,178,135
210 3,368,520 726,333 138,750 265,194 4,490,797
201 1,502,133 550,255 138,750 259,720 2,540,858
N2 1.714,173 483,263 22787 254,228 2679539
03 1,616,313 410,180 8687 243923 2808103
204 1,583,562 326,595 441,438 233,141 2584736

2152020 6,090,744 835835 4,504,255 1,056,852 12,187,687

$ 24334438 $ 6728403 $ 6185562 $ 3427145 § 40675553

e b —— i —— it ——"ee i

Sewer revenue bonds. The City issues sewer revenue bonds to provide for the
construction of sewer system infrastructure. These bonds are reported in the
sewer fund in the enterprise funds. Sewer revenue bonds as of June 30, 2005
consist of the following issues:

Issue Amount Interest Balance
Debt Date Issued Rates June 30, 2005
Sewer revenue 09/01/97 $§ 800,000 4.50-5.00 % 195,000
Sewer revenue 09/01/98 3,050,000 4.05-4.65 1,875,000
Sewer revenue 07101/ 1,160,000  3.00-4.90 885,000
$ 5,010,000 $ 2,955,000
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Future. debt service requirements for the outstanding sewer revenue bonded
indebtedness are as follows:

Year

Ending Obligation Obligation

June 30 Principal Interest Total
2006 . 370,000 133,788 503,788
2007 390,000 117,608 507,608
2008 295,000 100,273 395,273
2009 310,000 87,493 397,493
2010 325,000 73,713 398,713
2011 340,000 59,088 399,088
2012 355,000 43 573 398,573
2013 370,000 27,148 397,148
2014 200,000 9,800 209,800

$ 20955000 § 652484 § 3607484

The following provisions are included in the sewer revenue bond indenture:

That cash from the Sewer Fund shall be transferred monthly into the Sewer
Revenue and Interest Fund to pay the interest on, and o redeem the principal
amount of, the bonds at maturity. The monthly transfers must be equal fo one-
sixth of the interest due on the next payment date, plus one-twelfth of the
principal maturing on the next retirement date.

That cash from the Sewer Fund shall be transferred monthly into the Sewer
Revenue Bond Sinking Fund at the rate of twenty-five percent of the amount
required for the Sewer Revenue and Interest Fund unless the Sewer Revenue
Bond Sinking Fund contains as a reserve an amount equal to $541,760.

That on or before the beginning of each fiscal year City Council will adopt or
continue in effect rates for all services rendered by the Utility sufficient to
produce “net revenues” for the next succeeding fiscal year sufficient to meet
the requirements of the sinking funds and to create “net revenues” equal to at
least 1.25 times the maximum annual combined debt service of the revenue
bonds then outstanding. “Met revenues” are defined as gross revenues less
operating expenses which shall include salaries, wages, cost of maintenance
and operation, materials and supplies, and insurance, as well as other items
that are normally included under recognized accounting practices, but shall not
include allowance for depreciation in the value of physical properties.
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Notes payable. The City has entered into a note payable to the Burlington Area
Development Corporation for $372,000 on April 12, 1999. The note was
executed to help finance the infrastructure improvements necessary for
construction of the sports complex and is payable from future fax increment
funds. The note is due in 10 equal installments beginning on April 20, 2001 plus
interest at the rate of 5%. The remaining balance is $186,000. .

Ending June 30 Obligation Principal  Obligation Interest Total
2006 37,200 9,300 46,500
2007 37,200 7,440 44,640
2008 37,200 5,580 42,780
2009 37,200 3,720 40,920
2010 37,200 1,860 39,060

TOTAL $ 186,000 $ 27,900 $ 213,900

In addition, the City entered into a development agreement on December 20,
1993 to provide Tax Increment Financing to assist in the development of a
housing subdivision to create moderate income housing. One of the provisions of
the agreement called for the developers to guarantee the City's debt, in the event
TIF revenues were insufficient to meet debt service. The developers advanced a
total of $127,439 to the City to be repaid when TIF revenues become available.
For fiscal year 2004-05 a total of $45,354 of this debt was retired leaving a
balance of $82,085 to be retired over the next two years as follows:

Ending June 30 Obligation Principal Obligation Interest Total
2006 41,042 8,958 50,000
2007 41.043 8,957 50,000

TOTAL 82,085 17,915 100,000

Lease Payable. In July 2002, the City entered into a lease agreement with
Texron Financial to lease nineteen E-Z-GO Golf Carts. The lease called for four
payments with interest over four years. The caris have a current book vailue of
$30,163, net of depreciation. The remaining debt service schedule is as follows:

Ending‘.June 30 Obligation Principal Obligation Interest Total
2006 15,543 _ 802 16.345
TOTAL 15,543 802 16,345
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Changes in Long-term Debt. The following is a summary of the changes in the
long-term debt of the City for the year ended June 30, 2005.

June 30, June 30, Due Within
2004 Adcitlons Refirements 2005 One Year
Govemmental activities:
General obligation bonds $ 23351484 $ 2825000 $ 1942046 § 24334438 § 221749
Notes payable : 350,639 0 82,554 268,085 37,200
Cormpensated absences 786,143 102,267 0 888,410 222,103
Total governmental activities 24,488,266 3,027,267 2,024,600 25 490,933 2,476,799
Businesstype adiivities:
General obligation bonds 6,233,516 0 47,854 6,185,562 48,266
Sewer revenue bonds 3,310,000 0 355,000 2,955,000 470,000
Leases Payable 30,255 0 14,712 - 16,543 15,543
Conpensated absences - 212160 0 48 247 163,913 40,978
Total business-type adtivilies 9,785,931 0 465913  §,320018 574,787
Total longterm debt $ 34274197 $ 3027267 $ 2490513 § 34810951 $ 3,051,586

Typically, long-term liabilities of the governmental activities, other than debt, are
liquidated by the fund incurring the debt.

Subsequent Event. On.July 18, 2005 the City issued $5,000,000 of General Obligation
Bonds. These bonds bearing interest rates of 3.50% to 4.00% have a final maturity
date of June 1, 2020. These bonds were sold to finance the purchase of a new fire
aerial truck and to fund street improvements,

64



7]

A

R SR SN IS S

CITY OF BURLINGTON, IOWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

IX.

RESTRICTED NET ASSETS AND RESTRICTED ASSETS ACCOUNTS

The City's sewer revenue bond covenants and the Waterworks’ revenue bond
covenants require certain restrictions of net assets. Restrictions of net assets are
also created by grant restrictions, legal restrictions, and donor restrictions.
Restrictions of net assets related to bond covenants are shown net of the related
debt. The restricted portions of net assets as of June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Burlington
Governmental Business-type Municipal
Activities Activities Waterworks
Fublic Safety:
Donor restrictions 5 46,383 § 0 8 )
Cultural and Regreation:
Donor restrictions 197,356 0 0
Hotel/motel faxes 23,901 0 0
Public Works:
Donor restrictions 5,102 0 0
SSMID taxes 7,202 0 0
Road use taxes 114,189 0 0
Other:
Depreciation, extensions, and
improvements o 0 783,862
Debt service:
Sewer revenue bond sinking 0 541,760 0
Water revenue bond retirement 0 0] 243,483
Total 3 394,133 & 541,760 § 1,027,345

The balances of the restricted asset accounts as of June 30, 2005 are as follows:

Restricted assets, cash and cash
equivalenis

Restricted assets, Interest receivable

Total

Burlington

Business-type Municipal
Activities Waterworks
541,760 $ 1,222,036
0 322
541,760 $ 1,222,358
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X.

RETIREMENT SYSTEMS
lowa Pubiic Employees Retirement Systern (IPERS)

The City of Burlington and the Southeast lowa Regional Airport Authority
confribute to the lowa Public Employees Retirement System (IPERS), which is a
cost-sharing, multiple-employer, defined benefit pension plan administered by the
State of lowa. IPERS provides retirement and death benefits which are
established by State statute to plan members and beneficiaries. IPERS issues a
publicly available financial report that includes financial statements and required
supplementary. information. This report may be obtained by writing to IPERS,
P.O. Box 9117, Des Moines, lowa 50306-9117.

Plan members are required to contribute 3.70% of their annual covered salary
and the City and the SIRAA are required to contribute 5.75% of annual covered
payroll. Contribution requirements are established by State statute. The City's
contribution to IPERS for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were
$339,631, $333,712, and $332,075 respectively, equal to the required
contributions for each year. The SIRAA’s contributions to IPERS for the years
ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003 were $6,046, $5,817, and $6,514,
respectively.

Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa (MFPRSI)

The City contributes to the Municipal Fire and Police Retirement System of lowa
(MFPRSI) which is a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit plan
administered by a Board of Trustees. MFPRSI provides retirement, disability and
death benefits which are established by State statute io plan members and
beneficiaries. MFPRSI issues a publicly available financial report that includes -
financial statements and required supplementary information. The report which
may be obtained by writing to MFPRSI, 2836 104" Street, Urbandale, lowa
50322.

Plan members are required to contribute 9.35% of their earnable compensation
and the City's contribution rate may not be less than 17% of eamabie
compensation. For fiscal year 2004-2005 the City's contribution rate was
24.92%. Contribution requirements are established by State statute. The City's
contributions to MFPRSI for the years ended June 30, 2005, 2004, and 2003
were $932,157, $736,024, and $617,487 respectively, which met the required
minimum contributions for each year.

Waterworks’ Defined Contrihution Pension Plan
The Waterworks established a defined contribution pension plan on February 1,

1989. The Waterworks' Board of Trustees establishes and amends the pian
provisions which is administered by the Principal Financial Group.
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The plan members and the Waterworks are required to contribute 5% of the plan
members' total pay on a monthly basis. The Waterworks contributed $46,200,
$45.400, $44,300 net of forfeitures, to the plan for the years ended June 30,
2004, 2003, and 2002, respectively.

RISK MANAGEMENT

The City, in conjunction with Des Moines County, lowa, the Burlingion Municipal
Waterworks, the Southeast lowa Regional Airport Authority, and other
organizations participates in a multi-government pool for heatth insurance which
is funded through employer premiums. The City, the County, the Waterworks,
the SIRAA, and the other organizations are contingently liable as to medical
claims made by the participants in the plan. Effective July 1, 2003 the plan began
purchasing coverage through Wellmark Blue Cross/Blue Shield. Coverage
purchased includes a $2,000/$4,000 deductible, with the plan self-insuring the
difference between those amounts and the deductible elected by the employee.
Dental and Prescription Drug claims are self-insured. Claims based on
occurrences prior to July 1, 2003 remain insured under the previous insurance
policies. The handling of all claims and procedures is performed by an
independent claims administrator. Settled claims have not exceeded the planned
coverage during any of the past three fiscal years.

The City is self insured for general and automotive liability, property, and worker's
compensation. The City's general and automotive liability, property, and worker's
compensation premiums and claims are accounted for in an intemal service fund.
Charges are billed to the operating funds based upon actual claims incurred but
not reported (IBNR). Unemployment claims are charged quarterly io the
applicable funds based upon actual claims as assessed by the State.

Self insurance is in effect up to a stop loss amount of approximately $50,000 per
incident for property coverage, $100,000 per incident for worker's compensation,
and $250,000 per incident for all other coverage. Reinsurance of $5,000,000 for
liability and $66,227,777 for buildings and contents are provided over and above
the retention amounts. Settled claims have not exceeded this commercial
coverage in any of the past three fiscal years. The estimated liability does not
include any allocated or unallocated claims adjustment expense.

67




CITY OF BURLINGTON, IOWA

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
JUNE 30, 2005

XIl.

The changes in the aggregate liability for claims for the years ended June 30,
2005 and 2004 are as follows:

2005 2004

P———

Claims payable, beginning of year $ 46,772 $ 23,856
Incurred claims and other

adjustments (including IBNR) 269,791 150,030
Claim payments (199,110) (127,114}

Claims payable, end of year $ 117,453 $ 46,772

JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATIONS

The City participates in several jointly governed organizations. The City is a
member of the Des Moines County Regional Solid Waste Commission
(DMCRSWC). The Solid Waste Commission manages the landfill and the
recycling center in Des Moines County. The City, along with ten other
governmental entities, form the DMCRSWC, The City provides three board
members while each of the other entities provides one board member creating a
thiteen member board. The City paid $264,871 in recycling fees and $205,628
in [andﬂl charges in fiscal year 2005.

The City also participates in the Joint Safety Committee (JSC). The JSC is a
cooperative effort by the City, Des Moines County, and the Burlington Municipal
Waterworks to monitor and improve on-the-job safety conditions and to assist in
complying with OSHA regulations. Board members are based on number of
employees covered with the City appointing two members, the County two
members, and the Waterworks one member. The City contributed $43,983 in
fiscal year 2005 to the JSC for operatmg expenses and also provided acccuntlng
services at no cost.
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XV.

SIGNIFICANT TRANSACTIONS WITH COMPONENT UNITS

in 2001 the City entered into an agreement with the Southeast lowa Regional
Airport Authority to help fund the re-construction of a taxiway. The construction
was funded 90% from a Federal Aviation Administration grant. The City issued
$540,000 in general obligation bonds to assist the SIRAA with their share of the
project of $716,000. The SIRAA is making annual payments over ten years to
the City to cover the debt service. As of June 30, 2005 the outstanding balance
due the city was $375,000,

CONDUIT DEBT OBLIGATIONS

The City has, in the past, assisted in several issues of industrial revenue bonds,
issued for the purposes of constructing privately owned manufacturing and other
related facilities within the City. The bonds are not direct or contingent liabilities
of the City, as the revenue from lease agreements and property purchased with
the bond proceeds are pledged for the total payment of principal and interest on
the bonds and the bondhoiders can look only to these sources for repayment.
The following are the outstanding issues in which the City assisted:

iIssue Amount Final
Company Type Year Issued Maturity

Burlington Medical Center Refunding 1995 11,785,000 20086

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT PROGRAM

in 1984, under the terms of the Small Cities Community Development Biock
Grant Program, the City advanced $1,200,000 to a local construction company
for the redevelopment and operation of a housing prcject in the Flint Hills Manor
subdivision of the City. The contract is guaranteed by the officers of the
construction company and is due on October 16, 2014.

For the City to receive cash under this agreement, the construction company
must meet the principal and interest requirements on all other debt relating to the
project as well as all “normal” operating expenses of the project. In addition, the
construction company is guaranieed ten percent refurn on its equity in the project.
Funds available after satisfying the above conditions will be divided between the
canstruction company and the City, sixty percent (60%) and 40 percent (40%),
respectively.
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Any amounts received by the City under these conditions will be considered
interest. In no case will the City's rate of return on the $1,200,000 advance
exceed the greater of: (1) the bond rate as of December 31 of the subject year on
the First Mortgage Revenue bonds to be issued by the lowa Housing Finance
Authority in conjunction with the project, or {2) the cost of rollover financing on the
project, or (3) ten percent (10%). Any funds received from the housing project in
excess of the above limitations belong to the construction company. As of June
30, 2005, no cash has been received by the City under this.contract.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

The City also has outstanding commitments for construction projects including
street and sewer improvements, and other miscellaneous construction. The
City's commitment to these contracts, net of amounts funded through state and
federal grants, is $451,842.

The City is a defendant in several claims and lawsuits. In the opinion of the City
Attorney and management, the resolution of these matiers will not have a
material effect on the financial statements of the City.

'NEW GOVERNMENTAL ACCOUNTING STANDARDS BOARDS (GASB)

STANDARDS

The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) has issued two
statements not yet implemented by the City of Burlington. The statements, which
might impact the City of Burlington are as follows:

Statement No. 42, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Impairment of Capital
Assets and for Insurance Recoveries issued November 2003, will be effective for
the City for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006. This statement establishes
accounting and financial reporting standards for impairment of capital assets and
also clarifies and establishes accounting requirements for insurance recoveries.

Statement No. 43, Financial Reporting for Postemployment Benefit Plans Other
Than Pension Plans issued April, 2004 will be effective for the City for the fiscal
year ending June 30, 2008. This statement establishes uniform financial
reporting standards for other post employment benefitf(OPEB) plans and
supersedes the interim guidance included in statement No. 26. This statement
effects reporting by administrators or trustees of OPEB plan assets by employers
or sponsors that include OPEB plan assets as trust or agency funds in their
financial reports. ' ‘ - '

Statement No. 44, Economic Condition Reporting: The Statistical Section issued
May_ 2004, will be effective for the City for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2006.
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This statement amends previous guidance regarding preparation of the statistical
section for governments that issue a comprehensive annual financial report.

Statement No. 45, Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for
Postemployment Benefits Other Then Pensions issued June 2004, will be
effective for the City for the fiscal year ending June 30, 2009. This statement
establishes standards for the measurement, recognition, and display of (OPEB)
expense/expenditures and related liabilities (assets), note disclosures, and, If
applicable, required supplementary information (RSI) in the financial reports of
state and local govermment employers.

Statement N. 46, Net Assets Restricted by Enabling Legislation issued December
2004, will be effective for the City for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2006. This
statement clarifies the definition of a legally enforceable enabling legislation
restriction. It also specifies the accounting and financial reporting requirements
for the restrictions and for any changes in them.

Statement No. 47, Accounting for Termination Benefits issued June 2005,
establishes accounting standards for termination benefits. For termination
benefits provided through existing defined benefit OPEB plan, the provisions of
this Statement should be implemented simultaneously with the requirements of
Statement 45. For all other termination benefits, the Statement is effective for the
fiscal year ended June 30, 2008.

The City's management has not yet determined the effect these statements will
have on the City’s financial statements.
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For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Governmental Proprietary Budgeted Amounts. Final To
Funds Funds Total ‘ Actual
Actual Actual Actual Qriginal Final Variance
Resources (inflows):
Property taxes $§ 8,008,705 8 [ § 8,008,705 $ 8,018,819 $ 8,018,801 $ 10,186
Tax Increment Revenues 1,231,998 0 1,231,998 1,087,900 1,166,260 (65,738)
Other taxes 4,128,222 0 4,128,222 4,143,809 4,143,909 15,8687
Licenses and permits 280,275 2,000 262,275 209,720 209,720 {52,555)
Intergovernmental revenue 2,989,316 727,233 3,716,549 3,716,580 4,666,580 950,031
Charges for senvices 1,518,528 4,550,851 6,069,379 7,425,438 10,520,438 4,451,059
Use of money and property 308,062 7,374 316,336 362,940 382,940 46,604
Miscellanegus . 578,515 582,702 1,161,217 8,846,272 9,031,272 7,870,055
Special Assessments 54,578 0 54,6579 0 0 0
Total Recelpts 19,079,100 5,870,160 24,945,250 33,791,578 38,120,010 13,225,320
Disbursements: .
Public Safety 7,999,868 o 7,999,868 7,797,045 7,982,045 {17,823}
Public Works 3,439,245 1} 3,439,245 3,290,752 8,408,812 (29.433)
Health and Social Services 2,052 v 2,052 2,050 2,050 )
Culture and Recreation 4,229,803 o 3,229,803 3,000,820 3,295,320 65,517
Community and Ecanomic Development 286,124 0 286,124 326,902 376,902 0,778
General Government 1,285,467 0 1,285,467 1,202,269 1,300,269 14,802
Debt Service 3,773,548 1} 3,773,546 3,643,650 3,082,728 (690,818)
Capitat Projects 4,208,800 0 4,208,500 12,021,000 15,221,000 11,012,200
Business Type Activities D 6,952,608 5,952,608 5,416,527 10,807,527 3,354,918
Total Disbursements 24,224,904 6,952,608 31,177.512 36,701,015 45 477 653 14,300,141
Excess{deficiency) of receipts over
(under) disbursements {5,145,804) (1,082,448) (6,228,252} {2,909,437) {7.357 643) {1.074,812)
Other financing sources{net) 4,264,313 (1,339,313) 2,925,000 1,897,500 4,822,500 1,897,500
Excess({deficiency) of receipts and ofher
financing sources over(under) disbursaments
and other financing uses {881,491) (2,421,761} (4,303,252} (1,011,937) (2,535,143) 822,683
Balances beginning of year 1,280,167 1,607,240 2,887,416 3,306,965 3,386,985 {1.513,5086)
Balances end of Year $ 398,676 ) 5814,5122 § (415836) § 2385028 § 861,822 § {B90,818)

The notes fo the financial statements are an inlegral part of this statement.
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Budget to GAAP Reconciliation

Required Supplementary information

Revenues

Expenditure/Expense

Net

Other financing sources, net
Baginning fund balances/net assets

Ending fund balanceshet assefs

For The Year Ended June 30, 2005

Governmental Funds

Proprietary Funds

Accrual Medified Acrrual

Cash Adjust- Acerual Cash Adjust- Accrual

Basis ments Basis Basis ments Basis
16,079,099 - 16,079,099 4,469,054 666,409 5,135,653
24,224,004 (708,973) 23,515,931 5,415,683 638,283 6,053,066
{5,145,805) 708,973 (4,436,832) (946,629) 28,216 (918,413}
4264313 (837,451) 3,391,873 (1,303,807} 910,396 {393,411)
1,280,167 - 1,280,166 1,607,249 25,701,578 27,308,827

398,675 (128,478) 235,207 {643,187) 26,640,190 25,997,003

The notes to the financial statements are an integral part of this statement,
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The City prepares, adopts and submits to the State of lowa an annual budget on
a program basis for all combined funds, except the internal service funds, as
prescribed by lowa statutes. The State of lowa requires that annual budgets for
the year beginning July 1 be certified to the County Auditor no later than March 15
preceding the beginning of the fiscal year, The adopted budgst constitutes the
City's appropriation for each program and purpose specified therein until
amended.

After the initial budget is adopted, the budget may be amended for specific
purposes. Budget amendments are required for budget transfers between funds
as well as between programs. Management is not authorized to amend the
budget without the approval of City Council. The City filed one budget
amendments for the fiscal year ended June 30, 2005. This amendments was for
a total of $6,436,560. This included $1,800,000 contributed toward construction
of an outdoor Aguatic Park as part of the Fun City development, $975,000 for the
Comfort Suites development and $425,000 toward the renovation of Community
Field. The amendment also included $2,000,000 for the final work on the EPA
Sewer separation project, $250,000 for Federal-Mogul of which $200,000 came
from a State CEBA grant, $160,000 for expenditures at the Wastewater Plant
carried over from the prior year, $130,000 in interest on the 42004 bond issue,
$185,000 in Special Contribution Account spending and $75,000 to upgrade the
City's Financial Management software. The balance was to cover miscellaneous
items incurred during the year.

The City Council also approves a five year capital improvement program. This
capital improvement program is reviewed and revised annually by the City
Council. A public hearing is held in regard to proposed capital improvements for
the City. The first year of this plan is integrated into the City's accounting and
reporting system along with the annual operating budget.

The State of lowa allows the total cost of a construction project fo be budgeted in
one annual budgst even if the project extends beyond that fiscal year. The
remaining appropriation continues until the project is completed as long as (1) the
tfotal cost of the project is adopted after a public hearing as required by State
code, (2) the cost must be included in an adopted or amended city budget, and
(3) if the cost of a project exceeds the continuing appropriation, an additional
appropriation must be included in a subsequent budget or amendment.

The legatl level of control (the level at which expenditures may not legally exceed
appropriations) is the function level for all funds combined rather than at the
individual fund level. The nine functions mandated by the State are: {1) Public
Safety (2} Culture and Recreation (3} Community and Economic Development (4)
Health and Social Services (5) Public Works (6) General Government (7) Debt
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Service (8) Capital Projects and (9) Business Type Activities. Since the City
maintains its budgets at the individual fund level, it is necessary to aggregate the
expenditures of the budgeted aclivities within the individual funds on a function
basis and to compare such function totals with the function budgeted totals in
order to demonstrate legal compliance with the budget.

Revenues are credited to the individual fund types while expenditures/expenses
are classified according to function areas within the individual funds for budgetary
control purposes. Encumbrances and expenditures/expenses are compared to
budget appropriations according to the nine general function designations.

For budgetary purposes, encumbrances are recognized as a valid and proper
charge against the budget appropriations in the year in which the commitment
was issued. Encumbrances do not lapse at year end and provide authorization
for expenditure in the following year. Unencumbered appropriations, other than
amounts appropriated for capital projects, lapse at year end. Appropriations for
unfinished capital projects are carried forward indefinitety

All general obligation bond payments, including those for which financial reporting
purposes are accounted for through the enterprise funds, are budgeted through
the debt service fund.

A comparison of the actual expenditures/expenses with the City's final amended
program budget amounts is presented as Required Supplementary Information.

A reconciliation of the expenditures as presented in accordance with generally

accepted accounting principles (GAAP), to the amounts presented on the
budgetary basis is also presented as Required Supplementary Information.
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Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Special revenue funds are used to account for specific revenues that are legally or
administrativeiy restricted to expenditure for a particular purpose.

Hotel/Motel Tax Fund - Accounts for the expenditure of available monies from the City’s tax on
hotel and motel rooms. .

Special Assessments Fund - Accounts for assessments placed on specific properties for
improvements that affect those properties.

Community Development Fund - Accounts for block grants received to rehabilitate and improve
designated declining areas within the City.

Recreation Fund - Accounts for revenues designated to provide the citizens recreational
opportunities.

Employee Benefits Fund - Accounts for property taxes levied for FICA, IPERS, and other
employee benefits.

Equipment Replacement Fund - Accounts for the purchase and replat:ement of capital
equipment for general operations of the City.

Bridge Fund - Accounts for the funds retained by the City following the replacement of fhe
MacArthur Bridge, to be used for maintenance of the new bridge.

Airport L.evy Fund - Accounts for the property taxes Ievied to fund the Crty’s membershlp
contribution to the Scutheast lowa Regional Airport Authority.

'Downtown SSMID District Fund - Accounts for the self-imposed properiy tax levy by a
downtown district, to be used for the promation and improvement of that district.

Speclal Contribution Fund - Accounts for donations restricted by donors to specific activities
and purposes.

CTAC Internet Fund — Accounts for the receipt of funds contributed by the entities utilizing the
City's Wide Area Network and the corresponding expenditures to maintain the system.
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Assals

Cash and cash equivalents
Raceivables:
Taxas
Accounts .
Spacial assesEmants
Intergoveramentat i
Dus from Othar Funds
Prepald contracls

Total assets
Liabtiities and fund balancas {deficits)
Liabiliies
Accounis payable
Due to ather funds
Deferred revanue
=) Totaltabilites
Fund balances (deficis)
Reservad for encumbrances
Unreservad, undesignatad
Total fund balances (daficits)

Total fiablities ard fund balances (defisits)

— r— [/ [ o T CoD 1 1 T T DD T
City of Burlington, lowa
Combining Balznce Shest
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
Juna 30, 2005
Speclel Revenus
Towntown Tatal
HotetiMotel Special Community Employce Equlpment CTAC SSMID Special Governmental
Tax Assessments _Devalopment Recreatlon Benefits Replacement Bridge Alrport Levy Internet District Contribution Funds
$ 10,653 0 5 Q h a 5 o 3 4,154 s 3,788 $ 1] 3 1,858 4 7.202 % 5,523 $ 34,176
@ v] /] D 1,255,774 0 a 113,147 0 66,234 0
10,443 0 B,510 1,200 0 0 - 9 9 e 180 i
o 113,847 D 0 0 0 0 9 a 0 0 113,847
0 g 0 0 0 0 0 0 o D 0 "
229,248 o 0 a 0 g 32,556 ] 0 0 265,262 527 466
0 0 D 1] 1] ] 1] 1,080 0 0 a 1,860
$ 250,344 113,847 b 9,510 $ 1,200 $ 1255774 £ 4,154 b 3g744  _§ 114227 ] 1,856 5 73,436 $ 271,865 § 2,133,147
3 63,016 - 3 - $ 9,886 5 0 3 0 8 1,298 L3 0 5 0 3 L] B45
a 1,304 65,117 108,815 14,460 0 0 38,752 Q o s o ’ 2;3232
1] 111,970 5,429 1] 1,241,200 V] [ 111,419 1] 4,936 1] 7,538:954
§3,016 113,274 74,548 118,501 1,255,660 1] 1,296 151,171 - £4,936 845 1.843,045
0 Y] - 239 1] [ 543 0 36 0 0 1,097
187,328 5973 {65,036) (117,450) 114 4,154 34,995 (36,844} 1,541 8,900 271,320 209,005
187,325 573 {85,036) {117,211} 114 4,164 35448 (36,944) 1,858 8,500 271,370 280,102
$ 250,344 113,847 3 9,511 $ 1,290 § 1&55!774 $ 4,154 ] d8,744 $ 4Ry & 1,856 3 734348 $ 271885 $ 2133147
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c_lty of Burlington, lowa

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes i Fund Balances (Deficits)
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

Far the Year Ended June 30, 2005
Spoclal Revenug
Downtown Total
HotelMatet Special Commurilty Employee Equipment CTAC SSNID Speciat Governmental
Tax Assessments _Development Recreatlan Bonefits Replacement Bridge AirportLevy Internet Diskrlet Contributign Funds:
Revenues:
Property faxes $ a % 3 0 8 0§ %2753 § [ I o % 110328 ¢ % B3oeD  § 0 % 1103051
Cther taxes and assessments L] ag,016 0 0 36,008 1} 0 4,278 [} 1} o 76,302
Fines and farfeituras 1] [} 1,058 a | 0 0 4 1] 0 1,058
Intergovemmmental a Q [} [} Q 0 o a a ] 7.926 7928
Chargas far services - : 0 0 [ 15,739 0 a 3,125 Q 8,028 o Q 26,892
Usae of maray and preperty . 260 0 L 8,580 500 7 #6 1] 0 q 2052 11,465
Other 14,443 9 4,020 1,310 Ji] [ 6,850 a 0 208,904 231,627
Fatal ravenuas 10,703 36,016 4,020 25 687 965,281 7 10,141 114,607 8,028 83,969 218,882 1,458,321
Expenditures:
Current operaling:
Publle Sefely 0 ] -0 1] 0 0 o 0 0 0 15,808 15,808
Culture and Recraation ) 266,762 1} 1} 104,701 o it 6,487 o Q o 154,451 632,441
Public Works 0 0 0 o Q o 6,048 118,922 21,228 81,456 )] 206,555
Communlty end Econcemlc Davelopment 0 0 N 0 a 1] 0 0 0 0 0 ]
Total expenditures - 266,762 0 [1] 104,743 Q )] 13,435 116,922 21,228 61,456 170,269 754,804
Exaess (deficiency) of revenues
aver {under} expenditures - {256,058) 36,018 4028 {78,054) 965,261 7 204 {2.315) {13.201) 2,513 48,623 703,517
Cther financing sources (usesk
" Transfers In ) 287,312 o Q 79,142 0 1} 0 [1] 0 4 a © 366,454
Transfers out {31,400} (38,576} Q 1] {972,703) 1] 0 1] 0 a (84,852) (1,127,531}
Total cther financing sources and uses 255,912 {38,576} 0 79,142 (972 703} 1] a a 0 1] {94.952) (761,077}
Net change i fund kalance {147) {2,560) 4020 1,088 {7.442) 7 (3,294} {2,315} ©(13,201) 2,513 {36,7229) {57,500}
Fund balanaas {daflclis), baginning : 187,475 3,133 (89,056} (118,299} 7,558 4,147 38,742 (34,620} 15,057, 5987 307,548 347 662

Fund balances (deflclls), ending $ 187328 $ 573§ (B5038) 8 (117.211} B 114 ¢ 4154 § 35448 5 (36044) _§ 1,856 8 BEOD  § 271,320 § 290,102
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Assets
Current assets:
Recelvables:
Accounts
inventories
Prepaid conirmacts
Tatal current assets
MNoncurrent assets:
Capltal assets:
Buldings, infrastructure, and equipment, net
Total nencurrent assets

Total assets

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Claims payable
Due to other funds
Bond interest payable
Current portion of long-term obligations
Total current llabliies

Noncusrent liabilities:
Noncurrent portion of long-term obllgations

Total liabilitles
Net Assets

Invested in capital assets, net of related debt
Unrestricted (deficit}

Total net assets

Total liabllitles and net assels

Clty of Burlington, lowa

Combining Statement of Net Assets

Internal Service Funds

June 30, 2005
Property Vehicle Safety Self Miscellaneous
Maintenance  Maintenance _Coordination Insurance Service Total

1} 40,387 45,257 a 0 B5,644

0 33,381 0 ] 0 33,381

3.780 6,381 0 0 i} 10,171

3,780 BC,149 45,257 0 1] 128,186

$ 184,079 691,531 3,823 0 0 B79,433
184,079 691,531 3,823 1] 4] 870,433

5 167860 8§ 77680 & 40080 % D 8 g § 1,008,629
§ 8,817 3 36,402 g 10,015 5 28,968 § 10,613 3 94,815
0 1] 0 117,543 o 117,543

165,205 185,135 32,956 22,904 6,207 412,407

580 2,822 0 0 4] 3,402

10,063 15,6874 702 0 0 26,439
184,665 240,033 43,673 169,415 16,820 654,606
145,869 609,520 2,107 0 0 757,496
330,534 542,553 45,780 169,415 16,820 1.412,102

H] 58,519 81,031 3,823 0 0 143,373
(201,184} {158,004) (524) (169,414) (16,820) (546,846}
(142 6B5) {77.873) 3,299 (169,414) {18,820) (403,473}

$§ 187889 5 77IE60 % 49,080 % 1 5 0§ 1008622
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City of Burlington, lowa

Combining Statement of Revenﬁes, Expenses, and Changes in Net Assats
Iinternal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Property Vehicle Safety Self Miscellaneous
Maintenance _ Maintenance Coordination Insurance Service Total

Cperating revenues:

Charges for services $ 345357 § S56,740 % 94346 % 95514 § 0 § 1,091,857
Oﬂw_er 4] 8,092 40 1] 266,056 274,188
Total operating revenues 345,357 564,832 94,386 95,514 266,056 1,368,145

Operating expenses: '

. Personal services 319,797 185,180 78,725 0 ] 583,702
Contractua) services . 41,678 15,506 6,950 198,110 261,366 524,610
Operating supplies 9,260 335,781 5,466 a 871 351,388
Depreciafion 22075 21,830 201 ) 0 44,106

Total operating expenses 392,810 558,307 ' 91,342 199,110 262,237 1,503,806
Operating incoma {Joss) (47,453) 6,525 3.044 {103,596} 3,818 ' (137,661)

Monpperating revenuas {axpenses): ' :

Interest expense (6,061) (28,445) 0 o] o] {35,508)
Total nonoperating revenues (expenses) (8,081} (29,445} o] o] 0 {35,506)
Met income (loss) before contributions and transfars (53,514) (22,920) 3,044 {103,566) 3,819 (173,167)

Transfers in 1] 0 4] 35,000 +] 35,000

Ttransfers Qut {3,104} 15,0943 0 1] 8] (18,198)

Change [n net assets {56,618} (38,014) 3,044 {68,596) 3,819 (156,3685)
Total net assets - beginning (856,047) (39,859) 255 (100,8148) (20,6349} (247,108)
Total net assats - ending 3 (142665 § {77873} § 3208 §$ (169414 & (16,820 § (403473
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Cash flows from operating aciivities:
Receipts from customars
Payrments to suppliers
Payments to employees
Internal activity-payments to {from) other funcls
Claims pald to outslders
Other raceipts {(payments)

Net cash provided {used) by operating activities ~
Cash flows from noricapial financing activities:
Operating subsidles and transfers to other funds
Operating subsidies and {ransfers from.other funds
Proceeds (payments} from/to interfund accounts
Net cash pravided {used) by noncapital financing activilies
Cash flows from capital 2nd related financing activities:
Purchase of Capltal Assets
Principal paid on Capital Debt .
Interest paid on capiial debt

Net eash provided {used) by capital and
related financing activities

Cash flows from investing acivities:
Interest received

Net increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents

Balances - beginning of year

Balances - end of year

Clty of Burllrtgton. iowa

Cumblnlng Statement of Cash Flows
.o+ Internal Service Funds
For the Year Ended June 30, 2005

Property Vehicle Safety Self Misceilaneous

Mainienance Maintanance Coordination Insurance Service Totals
5 0 3 8092 § 94346  § 9514 0§ 197952
(60,938) (351,005} {12,418) 0 {256,048) (871,305)
(318,507) (170,762) {79,426) 0 0 (569,695}
345,357, | 556,740 i} 1] 1) 902,097
0 o 0 (124,191) L (124,191)
0 : 0 ) 0 0 266,056 266,056
{25,088) 43,065 2,504 {28.677) 9,110 914
{3,104) {15,G84) . {18,198)
. 0 o : 0 35,000 0 35,000
36,736 18,441 1,520 (6.323) . - .- {9,110} 41,264
33,632 3,347 1.520 28,677 {9,110} £8,068
0 (4,901) (4,024) o 0 (8,925)
{2,470} - 12000y 0 0. 0 (14,470)
(6,074} (20.511) ‘ 0 0 0 (35,585)
(8.544) (46,412} (4.024) 0 Y (58,950)
4] 0 0 0 ] [\
o 0 0 0 0 0
0 1] 0 1] a 0
§ 0§ g 8 0 .8 0 5 0 % 0
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Reconciliation of operaiing income (loss) to net cash
provided (used) by operating sctivities:
Operating income (loss}
Adjustments to reconcile operating income o net cash
provided (used) by operafing activifias:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabiliiles:
Receivables, net
Imventories
Prepaid contracts
Accounts and other payables

Nat cash provided {used) by operating activities

- o O T3 T 1 T T T T

$ {47,453) § 6525 § 3044 % {(103,596) § 3818 3 (137.661)
22,075 21,830 201 0 0 44,106

0 (2,235) (9,271) 0 3,214 (8,292)

0 {4,742) 0 o i (4,742)

{239) @n 0 0 0 (256}
529 21,744 8,530 74,919 2,077 107,769
$ (25088) _$ 43065 § 2504 % (2B677) & 9,110 § 914







City of Burlington, lewa

Government-wide Expenses by Function

__..

————

Note: Fiscal Year 2002-2003 represents the first year in which the City
reported using the nine functlon areas.

85

Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2003 2004

Governmental activities:
Public Safety 5 7,567,778 $ 8,242 972 $ 8,622,016
Culture and Recreation 3,337,826 3,402,667 3,660,012
Public Works 4,544 594 5,471,858 5,504,824
Community and Economic Development 712,066 716,776 304,048
Health and Social Services 3,014 1,481 2,052
General Government 1,289,403 1,221,354 1,468,785
Interest on Long-Term Debt 1,127,628 1,071,062 1,058,329
Capital Projects 2,380,881 882,424 3,433,235

Business-type activities:
Sewer 3,608,945 3,887,074 4,072,268
Solid waste 1,079,827 1,088,093 1,188,290
Recplax 478,823 508,042 520,097
Parking 144,608 134,993 137,152
Flint Hillz golf course 489,245 534,187 536,044
Total $- 26,764,638 § 27,163,083 $ 30,400,952
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City of Burlington, lowa

Government-wide Revenues by Source

Program Revenues

ngeral Revenues

Grants and
Charges Operating Capitai Contributions

Fiscal for Grants and Grants and Property Nonproperty Not Restrictedto

Year Services  Contributions Contributions Taxes Taxes Specific Programs __Interest Other Total
2001 $5,953,826 § 2918127 $ 4,852160 $7,740,374 § 4,044,360 $ 1,009,708 $481,810 $ 476,822 §$27,477,187
2002 - $6127,099 § 3208715 $ 2192503 $8,196,118 § 4,200,721 $ 1,072,319 $127,954 $ 572,873 $ 25,697,802
2003 $6360399 § 2241392 § 2,616,008 $8,348,421 § 4,327,020 § 1,373,206 $128,420 $2,599,997 - §28,003,863
2004 $ 6857341 $ 2,904,168 $ 7,357,328 $8,592,113 $ 4,305,038 $ 220926 § 37,181 $3,571,836 $ 33,854,931
2005 $7242614 § 2476106 $ 6,642,284 $9,256,709 § 4,028,019 $ 10,451 § 18,856 $2,608,585 §32,283,624

* Fiscal year 2001 was the first year of reporting the City's operations
on a government-wide basis.
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City of Burlington, lowa
General Governmental Expenditures by Function (1)
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Ratio of Debt
Community Health and Service ta General
Fiscal Public Culture and Public and Economic Sovial General Debt Government
Year Safety Recreation Warks Development Services Govemment Service Total Expenditures
1998 540,245 14,074,244 3.84%
1997 523,425 13,470,244 3.89%
1998 1,876,834 * 15,198,526 12.35%
1999 2,234,154 16,334,840 13.68%
2000 2,598,473 17,853,625 14.72%
2001 2,760,255 17,929,656 15.39%
2002 3,055,806 19,388,193 15.76%
2003 7,364,258 3,284,973 3,285,576 703,826 3,014 1,253,311 3,379,005 19,273,983 17.53%
2004 7,550,767 3,098,643 3,329,687 524,932 1,481 1,138,810 3,028,117 18,672,337 16.22%
2005 7,990,251 3,234,453 3,454,777 231,124 2,052 1,285,467 3,039,455 19,237,589 15.80%

(1} Includes General, Spacial Revenue, and Debt Service Funds.

9?, _ Muote: Fiscal 2002-2003 represents the first year in which the city reposted using the nine functions
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City of Burlington, lowa

General Governmental Revenues by Source {1}

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Taxes Licenses Charges Fines Use of
Fiscal and and for and Money and

Year Assessments Permits Intergovernmental Services Forfeitures Property Other Total

1986 9,025,799 174,568 3,653,465 510,916 84,977 505,949 240,877 14,196,551
1997 10,698,106 251,040 3,504,631 439,933 83,487 261,019 148,769 15,387,985
1998 10,406,165 305,561 3,361,385 630,711 108,441 355,342 175,283 15,342,908
1093 11,213,382 332,186 3,808,088 825,050 106,975 383,401 215,704 16,885,786
2000 12,304,136 309,382 3,824,386 865,368 108,877 330,563 203,970 17,944,682
2001 11,810,679 280,331 4,062,456 888,879 70,124 294,644 313,736 A7, 720,849
2002 12,251,636 319,302 4,123,205 1,043,001 65,124 320,752 646,174 18,769,194
2003 12,424,910 344,680 3,969,033 1,202,008 74,210 271,837 380,122 18,666,800
2004 12,885,128 - 219,816 3,262,060 1,465,067 102,293 295,746 403,607 18,633,717
2005, 13,404,941 260,275 2,803,579 1,425,570 02,958 202 270 461,922 18,841,515

(1) includes GGeneral, Special Revenue, and Debt Service Funds.
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City of Burlington, lowa

Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percent of Ratio of
Property Delinguent Total Total Tax
Fiscal Teotal Tax Current Tax Taxes Property Tax Property Tax Collections to
Year Levy Coliections Collected Colleciicns Collections Total Tax Levy
1296 6,959,675 6,588,058 98.97% 33,285 6,921,343 99.45%
1997 6,981,887 7,050,498 100.98% 10,110 7,060,608 101.13%
1998 6,711,884 6,832,866 101.80% 10,800 6,843,666 101.96%
1999 5,813,391 6,868,641 100.81% 6,352 6,874,993 100.90%
2000 7,357,016 7,380,147 100.04% 6,374 7,366,521 100.13%
2001 6,850,813 6,834,547 99.76% 5,323 5,839,870 99.84%
2002 7,109,690 7,020,899 98.75% 67,370 7,088,369 98.70%
2003 7,414,455 7,274,017 98.11% 3,203 7,277,220 98.15%
2004 7,511,062 7,636,167 100.33% 87,211 7,623,377 101.50%

2005 8,018,819 7,008,364 99.74% 4,124 8,002,488 99.80%
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City of Burlington, lowa

Property Tax Rates - All Direct and Overlapping Governments
Per $1,000 Assessed Valuation
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Percent of
City of
. Burlington City of : Burlington
Fiscal School District Burlington Other Levyto
Year - Lewy Levy Levies Total Levy Total Levy
1995/96 16.2674 12.2266 ' 6.0107 34.5047 35.43%
1996/97 15.8054 12.2863 7.5852 35.6769 34.44%
1997/98 15.6457 121138 7.2749 35.0345 34.58%
1998/29 15.1878 12.1346 7.2478 34.5702 35.10%
1998/00 14.4788 12.2787 7.3314 . 34.0888 36.02%
2000/01 14.5734 12.3560 B.1427 35.0722 35.23%
2001/02 14.5401 12,7558 8.1577 35.4635 35.98%
2002/03 14.2585 13.1348 8.8979 36.2912 36.19%
2003/04 14.1205 13.2841 8.8183 36.2229 36.67%
2004/05 15.5650 14.2393 10.1901 39.9945 35.60%

90



S S S S SR St S St S GO S S S SRR S A R S S U ~
City of Burlington, fowa
Ratio of Net General Gbligation Bonded Debt to Taxable Valuation
and Net Bonded Debt Per Capita
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Gross
General Debt Debt Ratio of Net
Obligation Less Debt Payable from Payable from Net Bonded Dehbt Net Bonded
Fiscal Taxable Bonded Service Proprietary TIF Bonded to Taxabla Deht Per
Year Population {1) Valuation Debt Fund Funds Revenues Debt Valuation Capita
1996 27,208 533,183,379 3,840,000 (19,735) 165,000 880,000 2,814,735 0.5279% 103.45
1997 27,209 528,743,139 7,665,000 (11,927) 695,000 2,447 500 4,534,427 0.8576% 166.65
1008 27,209 542,137,786 11,450,000 32,394 618,064 4,598,573 6,200,269 1.1438% 227.90
1999 27,209 560,194,364 16,070,000 22,361 837,245 6,711,900 8,608,494 1.5528% 319.69
2000 27,209 589,120,590 21,690,000 14,988 2,689,029 6,272,615 12,713,368 2.1580% 467.25
2001 26,839 571,878,000 19,810,000 (26,361) 2,591,057 4,520,000 12,725,304 2.2252% 47413
2002 26,839 578,474,076 25,080,000 (49,986) 2,514,243 3,910,000 18,705,743 3.2336% 696.96
© 2003 26,839 583,617,628 24,680,000 1,595,430 1,409,646 3,434,334 18,450,590 3.1614% 687.45
= 2004 26,839 583,044,138 29,585,000 (152,490} 6,860,010 5,386,238 17,491,242 3.0000% 651.7%
2005 26,838 588,124,008 30,520,000 (166,201) 6,185,562 4,771,091 19,720,548 3.3547% 73511

{1) Source: U.S. Census Bureau.




26

City of Burlington, lowa

Actual and Taxable Valuation

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Actual Yaluation

Residential
Agricultural land
Agricultural bulldings
Commerclal
Industrial
Personal/Real estate
Railroad
Utilities
Utility Relmburse
Other
5ross valuation
Less; Military exemption
Nat valuation
[ncremental value
Actuat valuation
Percent change

Taxable Valualion

Residantlat

Agricultural kand

Agricultural buildings

Commerclai

industrial

Personal/Real estale

Railresd

Utilities

Utility Relmburse

Other

Gross valuation .
Less: Mifitary exemption

Net valuration

Incremental value

Taxable valuation

Parcent change

As of January 1

2003 2002 2001 2000 1998 1308 1987 1996 1985 1994
$62B,94B.275  $627,BBT056 $623012453 §547.438007 § 543451881  $544901,733 528,618,110 484,038,828  §474,802,606  GA0Z,977,137
1,367,127 1,975,080 2,229,005 2,076,201 2,122,602 1,638,657 2,020,046 1,466,918 1,741,986 1,733,377
108,040 107,625 112,502 116,293 116,203 119,012 214,267 166,212 156,978 198,402
183,565,011 172,873,480 160,054,432 166,845,453 162,042,544 161,191,613 150,511,036 133,038,538 127,688,407 134,269,458
57,267,613 55,639,205 56,861,772 55,823,330 65,427,861 51,432,711 50,345,325 50,314,349 49,707,472 45,761,107
0 0 6,876,354 16,436,325 27,442,798 38,817,188 40,712,170 43,280,529 46,108,202 £0,446,407
1,662,459 1,985,670 2,059,156 2,234,422 2,264,025 1,988,411 0 a ] o
4,488,137 5,207 421 4,685,266 4,383,530 4,318,077 33,509,650 34,901,815 32,964,431 32,646,485 35,529,527
24,924,177 28,996,535 27,966,227 27,085,088 26,824,733 0 0 i 0 i}
0 0 506,300 0 0 0 0 0 589,775 620,816
$972,350,630  §804,756,072 $A93403,4066 $822,487,737 5 824,010,814 $833,508,884 $A07,302,768  $746,160,806  $735,620,081  §$671,526,323
5 - 4,519,986 4,502,196 4,707,946 4,579,906 4,665,188 4,736,490 4,826,386 4,926,320
$912,360,839  $894,756,072 $A888,973470  GB17,805541 § 510,302,868 $820,018888  $B02,657,681  $741,424,316  5728,704,605  $666,600,003
36,444,742 29,806,623 29,803,510 28,616,601 28,271,364 20,098,368 16,941,882 6,678,436 17.449,907 19,849,264
$948,706,581 _§924,562,606 _$019.876.060 6846511042 _§ B47.574.232 $859,017,350_ 619,000,463 _5748,102.753 _5746,244,602 _3066,449,267
2.821% 0.619% B.549% -0.125% -1.332% 4,809% 9.557% 0.249% 8T11%  1.691%

As of January 1: . .

2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1958 1997 1096 1905 1994
$308,607,498  $322,651,750  $322,360,580 306,016,542 § 298,006,043  $205,003335  §200,258,918  $284,752,208  $278,574,632  5270,562.142
1,367,127 1,975,080 2,229,005 2,075,291 2,044,874 1,638,657 1,837,284 1,466,019 1,741,986 1,733,377
108,040 107,625 112,502 116,203 112,034 118,012 206,597 166,212 156,978 198,402
182,201,123 172,873,480 165,206,369 166,845,453 160,054,606 161,191,613 146,538,448 133,830,538 124,029,881 134,259,459
67,267,613 55,638,205 55,881,772 56,623,230 65,427,861 51,432,711 50,345,325 50,314,349 49,707,472 45,761,107
0 0 6,876,354 16,486,325 27,442,708 38,817,168 40,712,170 43,280,629 46,196,202 50,446,497
1,660,058 1,985,670 2,013,239 2,234,422 2,264,025 1,988,411 0 0 ¢ 0
4,488,137 5,207,421 4,885,266 4,383,530 4,318,077 33,509,669 34,800,810 32,964,431 32,587,537 34,637,208
24,924,177 28,806,535 27,966,227 27,085,086 26,824,733 0 0 0 0 0
@ 0 506,300 0 0 0 o 0 673,747 620,816
§581,633,673  5580,526,766  $58B,137,624  35683,066,272 $ 576,585,951  $593,700,506  $664,850,552  $546,874,278  $633,608,525  $538,109,690
4,318,457 4,300,023 4,518,896 © 4,592,196 4,707,946 4,579,996 4,665,188 4,736,490 4,825,386 4,926,320
577,315,216  $595,126,843 $683,617,028 $678,474076 § 571,878,005 $589,120,500  §560,194,964 $542,137,786  $528,743,139  $533,183,370
36,444,742 29,806,623 26,903,510 28,615,501 28,271,364 20,958,368 16,041,862 6,678,436 _  17.440.907 19,849,264
§613,750,058  _§614.933,466_ _§613,521,138  _5007,080,5¢7  _§ 600,149,309 8010,118,058  _$577,196,246 . _5oA8,818,222_ _5546,193,046 _$653,092,643
0191% 0.230% 1.069% 1.156% -3.064% 7.274% 5.160% 0.480% -1.237% 0.948%
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Clty of Burdington, lowa
Enterprise Activity Operating Revenues
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Year Ended June 30

Activity 2005 2004 2003 2002 2001 2000 1999 1908 1997 1996
Parking 3 63,170 § 65,297 $ 59954 § 62,608 $ 78,207 3 129,084 § 137,625 $ 184,836 $ 104,308 $116,133
Sewer 3,173,920 3,056,042 2,910,312 2,843,597 2,802,098 2,749,570 2,547,871 2,575,108 2415178 2,319,134
Airport (1) - 0 0 0 0 1} 0 1] 0 540,640
Solid Waste Management 1,128,697 1,083,177 1,066,272 1,062,608 1,082,534 1,047 524 1,165,627 1,022,740 1,119,330 1,015611
Flint Hills Goif Course 432,221 305,733 357,447 284,261 400,756 450,865 420,891 404 425 415,872 321,583
Recplex (2} 337,536 326,815 303,828 243,417 236,641 160,940 7,867 ¢ 0 ]

(1) The airport was transferred to the Southeast lowa Regional Airport Authority
on July 1, 1998, The City no langer has ownership of the airport operations

and the Airport Fund has been discontinued.

(2) The Recplex opened for operations lale in the spring of 1899.




City of Burlington, lowa

Computation of Legal Debt Margin
June 30, 2005

Total assessed valuation as of January 1, 2003
Debt limit - 5% of assessed valuation

Amount of debt applicable to limit:
General obligation bonds
Note from Grow Greater Burlington
Total Applicable to Limit

L egal debt margin
Percent of debt limit

94

€ &7

948,795,581

47,439,779

30,520,000
186,000

30,706,000

16,733,779
35.27%
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City of Burlington, lowa

Computation of Direct and Overlapping Bonded Debt

General Obligation Bonds

June 30, 2005

City of Burlington

Great River Area Education Agency
Southeastern Community College

West Burlington Community School District
Des Moines County

Burlingten Community School District

Total direct and overlapping bonded debt

{1) Excludes general obligation bonds reported in proprietary funds

and general obligation bonds payable from TIF revenues.

95

Net General Percent Direct and

Bonded Debt Applicable Overlapping Underlying
June 30, 2005 to City Bonded Debt Bonded Debt
$ 19,663,347 (1) 100.0000% $ 19,663,347 $ o]
2,095,000 20.7600% 434,922 1,660,078
14,566,638 20.7600% 3,024,034 11,542,604
3,010,000 14.0300% 422,303 2,587,697
500,000 50.9600% 254,800 245,200

8] 78.5000% 0 0

$ 39,734,985 $ 23,690,406 $ 16,035,579




City of Burlington, lowa

Principal Taxpayers

Percent of

January 1, 20032 Total

Taxahble Taxable

Taxpayer Type of Business Valuation , Value

Case New Holland (CNH) Industrial wheel and crawler tractors, $ 14,624,400 2.38%
loaders, forklifts, and accessories

Federal Mogul Company Champion spark plugs 6,000,000 - 0.98%
Winegard Company Distribution systems and related products 11,882,300 1.94%
Standard of Beaverdale, Inc. Lumber, Properly Management 6,206,800 1.01%
Vista Bakery Cookies and crackers 6,196,500 1.01%
Aldi, Inc. Grocery Distribution 8,838,700 0.95%
Tuthill Corporation Steam Turbines 5,086,800 0.83%
Mesker Investment Co. L.C. Halding Company 5,842,900 0.97%
Bradley QOperating Limited Holding Company 5,200,800 0.85%
$ 66,977,300 10.91%
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City of Burlington, lowa

Major Area Employers

Approximate
Number of
Name Product Employees
Aldl, Incorporated Grocery/Distribution Center 100200
Alfagomma Hydraulic Tubing 50-100
American Ordinance Explosives and ammunition Over 1,000
Antennacrafl, Division of RadioShack Corporation TV antenna and associafed electronics 50-100
Borghi International Hydraulic Piping 50-100
Burlington Basket Company Baby and picnic baskets, play pens and clothes 100-200
hampers :
Burlington Northern Santa Fe, inc. Locomuotive retwilding and repair Under 100
Casp New Holland Industrial wheel and crawier tractors, loaders, 200-500
forkdifts, and accessories
Cessford Construction Company Concrete aggregate, agriculiural limestone, 100-200
asphalt, sand and gravel
Champion Spark Plug, Division of Federal Mogut Champion spark plugs 500-1,000
CSl Employment 200-500
Diamond Viogel Paint Company Paint 50-100
ESCP Corportation 50-10Q
Flint Cliffs Mfg. Feeders, walerers, egg laying nests, metal 50-100
fabricating, slotled steel doors
General Electric Company Low and medium voltage switch gear 500-1,000
Great River Medical Center Healthcare Over 1,000
Hawk Eye, The Dally newspaper, printing 100-200
Hawkeye Concrete Products Concreta products 100-200
Lamont Limited Wicker furmniture and shelving 200-500
Manpower Temporary Services Employment Services 100-200
Modem Welding Company Steel tanks, storage bins and hoppers 50-100
P.P.G. Industries Tempered glass 50-100
Predision Resistive Products 50-100
Raider Precast Concrete Concrete Products 200-500
Ren Weber & Associates 50-100
Sterzing Food Company Fotato Chips 50-100
Tuthill Corporation, Murray Turbo Division Steam turbines 100-200
.5, Gypsurm Company Gypsum products, wallboard 200-500
Vista Bakery Cookiss and crackers §00-1,000
Wal-Mart Stores Discount store 200-500
Winegard Company Disfribution systems and related products 200-500
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City of Burlington, fowa

_Historical Economic Data

Last Ten Years

Employment Retail Salas (3) Buliding Permits Banking (3)

Calendar Unemployment Year Retall Retail Fiscal Number of Dollar Value of Calendar Combined
Year Population (1) Rate (2) Ended 3/31 _Permits Sales Year Permits Issued  Permits Issued Year _Deposits
1994 27,200 5.5% 1994 848 273,421,999 1995 1,004 14,179,413 1995 312,553,000
1995 27,209 5.2% 1995 857 272,276,940 1996 16 18,776,784 1996 328,285,000
14996 27,208 4.9% 1896 863 275,478,106 19087 822 14,992,629 1997 347,337,000
1997 27,200 3.6% 1897 8486 282,766,323 1993 769 : 18,458,064 1008 356,288,000
1998 27,209 3.4% 1998 843 259,558,335 1909 712 14,044,333 1999 364,163,000
1099 27,200 4.1% 1999 836 269,407,908 2000 697 8,285,573 2000 361,044,000
2000 26,830 4.5% 2000 831 270,701,424 2001 795 24,293,373 2001 381,794,000
2001 26,838 5.7% 2001 BO7 266,956,374 2002 644 18,244,317 2002 464,494,000
2002 26,839 5.5% 2002 793 253,673,761 2003 223 23,637,000 2003 468,713,000
2003 26,839 8.7% 2003 745 262,295,174 2004 223 18,739,000 2004 466,289,000
2004 26,839 6.3% 2004 736 264,138,149 2004 206 27,179,000

{1} LL.8. Census Bureau.
{2) Job Service of lowa.

{3) Piper Jaffray, Inc.
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City of Burlington, lowa

Miscellaneous Statistical Data

Date of incomoration
Form of government
Area

Employees as of June 30, 2005:
Permaneant
Part-time and temporary

Police protection:
Number of stations
Number of swomn officers

Fire protection:
Number of stations
Number of fire fighting personnel

Recreation:
Number of parks
Number of acres
Golf courses
Swimming pools
Minor league baseball

Wastewater Treatment Facitities:
Number of facilities
Daily average treatment in gallons
Maximum daily capacity in gallons
Major pumping stations
Minor pumping stations

Alrports:
Number of airports
Number of runways
Number of comimercial carriers

Other facifities:
Apple trees museum
Community field
Municipal auditorium
Port of Burington
Public ibrary
Senior center
Transportation depot

Schools:
Public
Parochial
Community colleges

Cemeteries

9%

July 2, 1836
Council-Manager
14 Square Miles

215
136

13
220

Class A

1

7.6 mitiion
18 million
3

10
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City of Burlington, lowa

Principal Officials ‘
Salaries and Length of Service
June 30, 2005

Elected officials:

Mike Edwards, Mayor

Mary M. Baker, Council Member
Mike Campbell, Council Member
William EIl, Council Member
Chris King, Council Member

Appointed officials:

Bruce Slagle, Clty Manager

Scott Power, City Altorney

Kathleen P. Salisbury, City Clerk

Chris Nosbisch, Director of Development

Douglas J. Wordsn, Deputy City Manager

Tom Clements, Fire Chief

Karen Weiss, Library Director

Phillip Collier, Parks and Recreation Superintendent

Bev Hunter, Personnel Director

Dave Wunnenberg, Police Chief

Ron Knoke, Public Works Director

Dionald Fitting, Wastewater Treatment Fagcility
Superintendent

100

Annual Years of
Salary Service
6,600 7172
6,000 3172
6,000 11/2
6,000 11/2
6,000 3172
86,336 712
18,000 9
44,486 19 1/2
54,890 1
68,602 27 1712
66,014 5
63,362 7 12
61,698 28
50,232 10
68,900 7
76,882 3112
62,842 23



.

L

tOL

S (SR S SR S oD T Ty Ty .o oo Ty ooy T T T
City of Burlingtor, lowa
Insurance Schedule
June 30, 2005
Liablity Policy
insurance Company Policy Number Type of Coverage Limits Expiration

lowa Underground Storage Tank
Westfield Insurance Company

Mount Vernon Fire Insurance Company

Mount Vernon Fire Insurance Company

Westfield Insurance Company

Princeton E& S

RSUI Group, Inc

Midwest Employees Casually - reinsurance
ASC - claims adjusting

8811049

CWP-3 757 861

CL2232957C

CL2231649

CBP-5 286 197

None

Underground Storage Tank Policy
Monay and Securities Policy

Dramshop Liability - Flint Hills Golf Course

Dramshop Liability - RecPlex

Public Employees Blanket Bond

Comprehensive General Liability
{$250,000 self insurance retention)

Property
{$50,000 self insurance retention)

Automobile Liability
{$250,000 seff insurance retention)

Public Offlclals Liabllity
($250,000 self insurance retention)

Workers' Compensation
{$100,000 self insurance retention)

$1,000,000 per ocourrence 10/26/2005
$1,000,000 aggregate

Varies A29/2006
$500,000 each occurrence 6/16/2006

%1,000,000 aggregate

$1,000,000 each occurrence 51/2006
$2,000,000 aggregate

$100,000 each occurrence 1/13/2008
$100,000 aggregate

$250,000 each occurrence 12/1/2005
$5,000,000 excess

$1,000,000 each occurrence
$64,790,880

$250,000 each occurrence
$5,000,000 excess

$5,000,000 each occurrance
$5,000,000 aggregate

Statutory




City of Burlington, lowa

Revenue Bond Coverage

Sewer Fund
Last Six Years
Net Revenue

Fiscal Gross Operating Avaitable For __ Maximum Debt Service Requirements (3)
Year Revenues (1) Expenses (2) Debt Service Principal Interest Total Coverage
2000 3,010,517 2,214,012 796,505 310,000 80,643 390,643 2.039
2001 3,037,540 2,368,175 669,365 310,000 80,643 390,643 1.713
2002 2,926,996 2,404,248 522,748 390,000 117,608 507,608 1.030
2003 2,960,478 2,518,198 442 282 320,000 117,608 507,608 0.871
2004 3,071,163 2,457,700 613,483 390,000 . 117,608 507,608 1.209
2005 3,181,296 2,513,878 667,420 390,000 117,808 507,608 1.315

(1) Total revenues ({inciuding interest) exclusive of tap fees.
(2) Total operating expenses exclusive of depreciation.
(3) Includes ptincipal and interest of revenue bonds only.
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON
COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF -
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE WITH

GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Burlington, lowa

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, the
aggregate discretely presented component units, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund
information of the City of Burlington, lowa, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2005, which collectively
comprise the Ciy's hasic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated November 3,
2005. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standlards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

tn planning and performing our audit, we considered the City's internal control aver financial reporting in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting. However, we
noted a matter invalving the internal control over financial reporting and its operation that we consider fo
be a reportable condition. Reportable condifions involve matters coming to our attention relating to
significant deficiencles in the design or operation of the internat control over financial reporting that, in our
judgment, could adversely affsct the City's ability to initiate, record, process, and report financial data
consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. The reportable condition is
described in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questicned Costs as item 11-A-05.

A material weakness is a reportable condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the
internal control components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that misstatements caused
by error or fraud in amounts that would be material in relation to the financial statements being audited
may oceur and not be detected within a timely period by employees in the normal course of performing
their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal confrol over financlal reporting would not
necessarily disclose all matters in the internal confrol that might be reportable conditions and,
accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are also considered to be
material weaknesses. However we believe the reporiable condition described above is not a material
weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City’s financial statements are free of
material misstaterment, we performed tests of its compliance with. certain provisions of laws, regulations,
confracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with which could have a direct and material effect on
the determination of financial statement amounts, However, providing an opinion on compliance with
those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.
The results of our tests disclosed no instances of non-compliance or other matters that are required to be
reported under Government Auditing Standards. However, we noted certain immaterial instances of non-
compliance that are described in Part 1V of the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned
Costs. .

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.

www.eidebailly.com
3999 Pennsylvania Ave., Suite 100 B Dubugue, lown 52002-263% I Phene 563,556.17%0 0 Fax 563,557 7642 1 EQE




Comments invoiving statutory and other legal matters about the City’'s operations for the year ended
June 30, 2005, are based exclusively on knowiedge obtainsd from procedures performed during our audit
of the financial statements of the City of Burlington, lowa. Since our audit was based on tests and
samples, not all transactions that might have had an impact on the comments were necessarily audited.
The comments invalving statutory and other legal matters are not intended to constitute legal
interpretations of those statutes.

We also noted certain additional matters that we reported to management of the City of Burlington, lowa,
in a separate letter dated November 3, 2005.

This report, a public record by law, is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and citizens of the City of Burlington, lowa, and other parties to whom the City of Burlington,
lowa, may report, including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified pariies.

We would like to acknowledge the many courtesies and assistance extended to us by personnel of the

City of Burlington, lowa, during the course of our audit. Should you have any questions concerning any of
the above maiters, we shall be pleased to discuss them with you at your convenience.

éﬁ/fuz@ L7’

Dubugue, lowa :
November 3, 2005
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CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS APPLICABLE TO
ITS MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER
COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMB CIRCULAR A-133

To the Honorable Mayor and
Members of the City Council
City of Burlington, lowa

Compliance
We have audited the compliance of the City of Burlington, lowa, (the City) with the types of compliance

requirements described in the U.S. Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Circular A-133 Compliance
Supplement that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2005. The City's
major federal program is identified in the summary of the independent auditor's results section of the
accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to its major federal program is the responsibility of the City's
management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City's compliance based on our audit.

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with audiing standards generally accepted in the
United States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing
Standards, issued by the Comptrolier General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of
States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133
reguire that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance
with the types of compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect
on a major federal program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
City's compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.
Our audit does not provide a legal determination on the City’s compliance with those requirements.

In our opinion, the City of Burlington, lowa, complied, in all material respects, with the requirements
referred to above that are applicable to its major federal program for the year ended June 30, 2005.

Internal Control Over Compliance
The management of the City of Burlington, lowa, is respensible for establishing and maintaining effective

internal control over compliance with reguirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable
to federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City’s internal conirol over
compliance with requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal program in
order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance and
to test and report on the internal control over compliance in accordance with OMB Circular A-133.

We noted a certain matter involving the internal control over compliance and its operation that we
consider to be a reportable condition. Reportable conditions involve matters coming to our attention
relating to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over compliance that, in
our judgment, could adversely affect the City’s ability to administer a major federal program in accordance
with applicable requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants. The reportable condition is
described as item llI-A-05 in the accompanying Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs. -

PEOPLE. PRINCIPLES. POSSIBILITIES.

www.eidebailly.com
3999 Pennsylvanla Ave., Suite 100 B Dubuque, lowa 52002-263% 1 Phone 563.554.1790 B Fax 563.557.7842 1 EQE




A material weakness is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components does not reduce to a relatively low level the risk that noncompliance with applicable
requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants caused by error or fraud that would be material in
relation to a major federal program being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely period by
employees in the normal course of performing their assigned functions. Our consideration of the internal
control over compliance would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that might be
reportabie conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose all reportable conditions that are
also considered to be material weaknesses. However, we believe the reportable condition described
above is not a material weakness.

This report, a public record by law, Is intended solely for the information and use of the officials,
employees, and citizens of the City of Burlington, lowa, and other parties to whom the City of Burlington,
lowa, may report, including federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities. This report is not
intended to be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

é@/&ﬁ««/@uﬁ

Dubuque, iowa
November 3, 2005
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City of Burlington, lowa

Scheduie of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Grantor/Program

Direct:
Department of Justice:

Local Law Enforcement Block Grants Program

Environmental Protection Agency:
Surveys, Studies, Investigations, and Special
Purpose Grants

Total Direct

Indirect:
Department of Justice:
Office of Drug Control Policy and Des
Moines County, lowa:
Byrne Formula Grant Program

Department of Transportation:
lowa Department of Transportation:
Highway Planning and Construction

Formula Grants for Other Than Urbanized
Areas

Governor's Traffic Safety Bureau:
State and Community Highway Safety
State and Community Highway Safety
State and Community Highway Safety
State and Community Highway Safety

Total Indirect

Toftal

Agency or
Pass-through
CEDA Number Number
16.592 2003-LB-BX-0788
. 66.606 XP997533-01-0
16.579 00-A0266
20.205 BRM-0877(620)- -
8N-29
20.509 18-4022-097-02
20.600 05-163, Task 08
20.600 04-163, Task 08
20.600 PAP 05-02, Task 01
20.600 04-04, Task 03

See notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards.

Program
Expenditures

$ 11.814

728,232

740,046

35.450

17.130
100,028

7.000
5,265
3,690
847
16,802

. 169.410
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City of Burington, lowa
Notes to the Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards

Year Ended Junse 30, 2005

NOTE 1. BASIS OF PRESENTATION

The accompanying Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards includes the federal grant activity of the
City of Burlington, lowa, and is presented on the accrual basis of accounting. The information an this
schedule Is presenied in accordance with the requirements of OMB Circular A-133, Audits of Stafes,
Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Therefore, some amounts presented in this schedule
may differ from amounts presented in, or used in the preparation of, the basic financial statements.
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City of Burlington, lowa
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Part i: Summary of the Independent Auditor's Results:

(a) Ungqualified opinions were issued on the financial statements.

(b) A reportable condition in internal control over financial reporting was disclosed by the audit of the
financial statements but was not considered a material weakness.

{c) The audit did not disclose any non-compliance which is material to the financial statements.

(d) A reportable condition in internal control over the major program was disclosed by the audit of the
financial statements but was not considered a material weaknhess.

(&) An ungualified opinion was issued on compliance with requirements applicable to the major program.

{f) The audit disclosed audit findings which were required to be reported in accordance with Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Section .510(a).

{(g) The major program was CFDA Number 66.606 — Surveys, Studies, Investigations, and Special
Purpose Grants. '

(h) The dollar threshold used to distinguish between Type A and Type B programs was $300,000.

(i) The City of Burlington, lowa, qualified as a low-risk auditee.

Part ll: Findings Related to the Financial Statements:

REPORTABLE CONDITION

II-A-05 Segregation of Duties — During our review of internal control, the existing procedures are
evaluated in order to determine that incompatible duties, from a control standpoint, are not
performed by the same employee. Currently, the Deputy City Manager posts all journal entries to
the general ledger, is an authorized check signer, and reconciles cash and investments. No one
else reviews the reconciliations.

Recommendation — We recommend that the City review operating procedures in order to obtain
the maximum internal control possible.

Response — With the limited number of employees in the Finance Department, it is impossible to
achieve a perfect system of internat accounting control. We will continue to review the situation,
and the City Manager will begin reviewing the monthly reconciliations.

Conclusion — Response accepted.
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City of Burlington, lowa
Schedule of Findlngs and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Part lll; Findings and Questioned Costs for Federal Awards:

CFDA Number 66.606: Surveys, Studies, Investigations, and Special Purpose Grants
Grant Number: XP997533-01-0
Environmental Protection Agency

REPORTABLE CONDITION

l-A-05 Seqréqation of Duties — The Deputy City Manager posts ali journal entries to the general iedger,

is an authorized check signer, and reconciles cash and investments. No one else reviews the
reconciliations. See item 11-A-05.

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporting:

IV-A-05

IV-B-05

IV-C-05

IV-D-05
IV-E-05

IV-F-05

Official Depositories — A resolution naming official depositories has been approved by the City
Council. The maximum deposit amounts stated in the resoiution were not exceeded during the
year ended June 30, 2005.

Certified Budget — Disbursements during the year ended June 30, 2005, exceeded the amaount
budgeted in the public safety and public works functions. Chapter 384.20 of the Code of lowa
states in part that public monies may not be expended or encumbered except under an annual
or continuing appropriation.

Recommendation — The budget should have been amended in sufficient amounts in
accordance with Chapter 384.18 of the Code of lowa before disbursements were allowed to
exceed the budget.

Response — The City will continue to monitor expenditures on an ongoing basis and in the
future will amend the budget prior to disbursements exceeding the budgeted amounts.

Conclusion — Response accepted.

Questionable Expenditures — We noted no expendatures that we believe may fail to meet the
requirements of public purpose as defined in an Attorney General's opinion dated Aprit 25,
1979.

Travel Expense — No expenditures of Clty monay for travel expenses of spouses of City officials
or employees were noted.

Business Transactions — No business transactions between the City and City officials or
employees were noted.

Bond Coverage — Surety bond coverage of City officials and employees is in accordance with
statutory provisions. The amount of coverage should be reviewed annually fo insure that the
coverage Is adequate for current operations. .
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City of Burlington, lowa
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs

Year Ended June 30, 2005

Part IV: Other Findings Related to Statutory Reporiing: {continued)

IV-G-05

V-H-05

IV--05

Council Minutes — No transactions were found that we believe should have been approved in
the Council minutes but were not. Although minutes of Council proceedings were published,
they were not normally published within 15 days of the meeting as required by Chapter
372.13(8) of the Code of lowa.

Recommendation — The City should take measures {o publish Council minutes within 15 days
of the meeting.

Response - It is the City's position that Council meeting minutes are not official until approved
by the City Council, and therefore, the 15 day limitation does not apply until approval.

Conclusion ~ Response acknowledged.

Deposits and Investments — No instances of non-compliance with the deposit and investment
provisions of Chapters 12B and 12C of the Code of lowa and ithe City’s investment policy were
noted.

Revenue Bonds — We noted no instances of noncompliance with the provisions of the City’s
revenue bond resolutions.
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